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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit attributable to owners of Wong's International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023 amounted to HK$152.7 million, as
compared to HK$112.4 million for the last financial year.

This was mainly attributable to the profit from EMS
Division increased by HK$34.2 million and profit from
the Property Holding Division increased by HK$168.0
million offsetting by the gains on deemed disposal of an
associate of HK$117.1 million recognised in 2022 and
increase in net finance cost by HK$26.1 million.

Earnings per share for the year was HK$0.32 as
compared to HK$0.23 for the last financial year. The
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
was HK$3,185.7 million, as compared to HK$3,466.7
million for the last financial year. Operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$215.1 million,
as compared to HK$241.2 million for the last financial
year.

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.03
(2022: HK$0.02) per share for 2023. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03
(2022: HK$0.045) per share on Friday, 28 June 2024
to the shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Wednesday,
12 June 2024. Payment of such proposed final dividend
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, 5 June 2024.
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Chairman’s Statement

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
THE AGM

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 30 May 2024 to Wednesday,
5 June 2024, both days inclusive. During this period,
no transfer of shares will be effected. To be eligible
to attend and vote at the meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
29 May 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed on Wednesday, 12 June 2024 and no transfer
of shares will be effected on that date. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend which is subject to approval of
the shareholders at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11 June 2024.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

DIVIDEND POLICY

For the purpose of maintaining a reasonable return
on investment and rewarding shareholders for their
continued support, the Board has adopted a Dividend
Policy for distribution of dividend to the shareholders
in accordance with the Group’s profit performance.
The dividend payout ratio will be based on the profit
attributable to the shareholders excluding share of profit
and loss of joint ventures/associated companies and
change in fair value of investment properties which have
been recorded in the consolidated income statement
after considering various prevailing factors at the time
of declaration of dividend, including but not limited to
financial performance and projected profitability, liquidity
position and capital efficiency, compliance with financial
covenants, dividends received from subsidiaries,
future growth and commitments, potential investment
opportunities, relevant provisions under the Company’s
bye-laws, laws of Bermuda and other applicable rules
and regulations. The Company may also distribute
special dividend from time to time in addition to the
ordinary dividend.

Depending on the situation from time to time, dividend
recommendation and payment shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the
approval of shareholders, where appropriate. There is
no assurance that dividends will be recommended or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”)
Division

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended
31 December 2023 was HK$3,123.9 million, as
compared to HK$3,404.5 million for the last financial
year. The segment profit attributable to the EMS
Division was HK$191.4 million, 21.8% increase as
compared to HK$157.2 million for the last financial year.
The increase in the segment net profit was attributable
to the improvement of operating efficiency.

Property Holding Division

Revenue for the Property Holding Division for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was HK$61.8 million, as
compared to HK$62.2 million for the last financial year.
The segment profit was HK$79.9 million, as compared
to segment loss of HK$88.1 million for last financial
year. The turnaround was driven by the lower reduction
on the value of properties held by the Group and
the Joint Ventures. The decrease in the value of the
properties is unrealised and did not have any impact on
the Group’s cash flow. The properties held by the Group
and the Joint Ventures are mainly for leasing purposes
and the rental income had no significant change during
the year.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 7
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total
of HK$3,071.3 million (2022: HK$3,408.2 million)
of banking facilities. Total bank borrowings were
HK$1,790.7 million (2022: HK$2,023.0 million). Cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits
and restricted cash were HK$1,348.0 million as at
31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,217.0 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$442.7 million, as compared to
HK$806.0 million as at 31 December 2022. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as Property Holding Division.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2023 was 0.10 (2022: 0.19). The net gearing ratio
was calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and restricted cash.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, Chinese Renminbi and Vietnam Dong. Consistent
with its prudent policy on financial risk management,
the Group does not use any foreign exchange hedging
products. The Group recognises the currency risk in the
fluctuation of Chinese Renminbi and will closely monitor
and actively manage the risk involved.
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Chairman’s Statement

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, restricted cash and equity attributable to
owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed
2,581 employees. The Group adopts a remuneration
policy which is commensurate with job nature,
qualification and experience of employees. In addition
to the provision of annual bonuses and employee
related insurance benefits, discretionary bonuses
are also rewarded to employees based on individual
performance. The remuneration packages and policies
are reviewed periodically. The Group also provides in-
house and external training programs to its employees.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 9
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

PROSPECTS

The global economic environment is complicated in Year
2024. On the one hand, high inflation and interest rates
as well as geopolitical risks continue to impact global
economic growth. On the other hand, declining inflation
has created room for the lowering of interest rates
although the timing and magnitude of the cuts remain
uncertain. The above factors will impact demand from
our customers and the profitability of the Group.

Shortages of semiconductors and components have
further eased, and component lead times are much
reduced. The Group will continue to implement stringent
cost saving and efficiency improvement measures to
ensure that our customers will be served in the most
efficient manner. Based on current customer orders
and forecasts, the Group expects that the revenue of
the EMS business for the first half of Year 2024 will
decrease slightly as some customers have reduced
their order forecasts to us due to overstocking arising
from shortage of critical materials in 2023. The Group
expects that the ordering levels of those customers
will resume to normal once they have consumed their
excess inventory.

Many customers are interested in the Group for having
factories in both Mainland China and Vietnam. The
Group is taking this advantage to obtain more sales
opportunities and expand the customer base of the
EMS business. Customer visits to qualify our new
production facility in Hai Duong Province, Vietnam, with
a floor area of 30,000 square meters have increased.
It will be an important source of future growth for the
Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS (continued)

The commercial properties held by the Group, directly or
indirectly, have been almost fully leased out, generating
stable income to the Group. Loan Interest rates are
expected to remain at high level in the first half of Year
2024. The Group has taken measures to hedge against
risk of rising interest rates.

AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the twelfth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continued confidence
in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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2023 2022 Changes
k3 BAX BAX BNE
Notes % % % point
EEEE Operating results
EERFAIHNEB AL Employee benefit expenses
to revenue % 12.9 13.2 -0.3
HgERsHhaantt Other operating expenses
to revenue % 5.3 4.9 0.4
EEMEE Operating profit % 6.8 7.0 -0.2
B E Net profit % 4.8 3.2 16
S ERTE Return on equity (%) 1 3.4 2.5 0.9
BERERR Financial health
FEEHERERANL Net debts to total equity % 2 10.3 19.1 -8.8
BERHBEEE L Borrowings to total equity % 3 40.0 45.8 -5.8
—E-=fF ZEZCE &
2023 2022 Changes
78 35 A Financial ratio
TiER
MBI % () Current ratio (Times) 4 1.6 1.5 N/A
SRYE Per share data
B #0.327T B#0.237C
BREF Earnings per share HK$0.32 HK$0.23 +35.8%
B 5 Notes:
1. R ERE=FFE g 1. Return on equity % = net profit/total equity
2. FEEHAEZE L= (RER+HEABEBE - 2. Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings + total lease liabilities
ReRReSEEMER - SHRITER R - total cash and cash equivalents - short-term bank deposits -
W& /B restricted cash)/total equity
3. ERUHERREDL=0ER Bk 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4. HEBLLR=RBHEEHRBDEE 4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 3



14

AFMHEHRE

Five-Year Financial Summary

ZE-=f  ZE%zz —Zz-f ZZZZF ZE-NF
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
BETTR BT BRI BEFTL BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
25 RESULTS

K& Revenue 3,185,668 3,466,674 3,256,729 3,224,636 3,781,156
EEFE/ (B1]) Operating profit/(oss) 215,094 241,231 120,300 (375,056) 245,157
BEEHATE/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before income tax 200,115 154,650 126,662 (735,630) 304,569
FiEH Income tax (47,389) (42,214) (37,188) (26,048) (38,242)
FERB/ (BB) Profit/(loss) for the year 152,726 112,436 89,474 (761,678) 266,327
BEANEGTRE/ (B8) Profit/(loss) attributable to owners 152,726 112,436 89,474 (761,674) 266,327
FERER Non-controlling interests = - - 4 -

EERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 7,310,256 7,678,233 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236
saf Total liabilities 2,835,989 3,265,140 3,268,739 3,252,157 3,177,012
GRRER A ER Equity attributable to owners 4,474,267 4,413,093 4,478,537 4,333,774 5,008,220
EERER Non-controlling interests - - - - 4
BEGRAE Total equity and liabilties 7,310,256 7,678,233 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 which
were approved by them at the board meeting held on
the date of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property holding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out on pages 112 to 259 of this Annual
Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit
by operating segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 as follows:

BT T

HK$’000

B HRE  AERE®0.03T  Interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share paid 14,354
BIRAEIE - AERE 31T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.03 per share

& #50.037T in issue 14,355

28,709

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 5
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 11
of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial risks
and the management of the risks of Group are provided
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 11 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 12 and 13 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.
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Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in flag-
selling activities etc. Certain companies in the Group
have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of
their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events

The Group did not have any material events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 7
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:

ELE
%
KEERR Purchases
— & AEER — the largest supplier 8
—REABEFEHTE — five largest suppliers combined 37
SHE R Sales
—&AREP — the largest customer 44
—HIARBEP&HEE — five largest customers combined 76
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No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) were interested
at any time during the year in the above suppliers or
customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are summarised on page 14.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
20283 calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$610,911,000 (2022:
HK$599,274,000).
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BRRE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

RABZRABIMAISERELEZLEMRTE There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of
BB TRNH ZEEE- shares which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws
or Bermuda laws.

BE HEXBEAXRAT LmES  PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

HE-_Z-_=F+-_F=+—HIFE - During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the
RNARISHEEMHBARMEREE HBE Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
SEEARAREMLETES - redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

ME BERSKE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REEWE BELZEZEEZEHIBEN Movements in book values of property, plant and
HERERE M B WMEM TS - equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B DONATIONS

REBRAFEzEZEREMELRZLL  Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
¥ 578 #71,0007T ° purposes during the year amounted to HK$71,000.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 9
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabiriel
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund
Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JpP

Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley

In accordance with Bye-laws 112 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Mr. Chan Wai Ming,
Hermes and Dr. Yu Sun Say shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and considers them as independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (former name: Wong
Chung Mat, Benedict), aged 72, joined the Group in
1975. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. In February 2003, he was appointed
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Administrative Committee of the Company and
a director of various other companies of the Group. He
is also a director of Salop Hong Kong Limited which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He obtained a
Master of Science degree in Operations Research from
Ohio State University and was conferred an Honorary
Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong. He has
over 49 years’ experience in the electronics industry.
Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada,
and brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui and
Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, and brother-in-law of
Ms. Luk Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming; who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 46, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She is currently a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited and a member of the Enterprise Support
Scheme Assessment Panel under the Innovation and
Technology Fund. She obtained a Bachelor degree
in Industrial Engineering and a Master of Science in
Engineering Management from University of Southern
California. Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong
Chung Mat, Ben, and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt,
Chung Chui, Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, Ms. Luk
Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming; who are substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 75, joined
the Group in 1985. He has been a Director of the
Company since June 1990. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management
Committee and the Administrative Committee of the
Company. He was formerly the Group’s Financial
Controller. In July 2007, he ceased to be the Group’s
Financial Controller and became a financial adviser
of the Group. He is also a director of certain other
companies of the Group. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and obtained a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences,
a Master of Arts degree in China Development
Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, he
had approximately 10 years’ experience with a major
international firm of accountants.

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 69, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Risk Management Committee and the Administrative
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
other companies of the Group. He has over 45 years
of working experience in electronics manufacturing
industry and now has the overall responsibility of
serving a portfolio of customers at Wong’s Electronics
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group, he held various
managerial positions in manufacturing, planning, sales
& marketing departments in multinational and listed
companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma in Industrial
Engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist University and
a Master degree in Business Administration from the
City University of Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes, aged 65, joined the
Group in June 2016 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance. He is responsible for all aspects relating to
accounting, finance and taxation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. He was appointed Director of
the Company in April 2021. He is also a member of
the Administrative Committee of the Company and
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the
Group, he has more than 30 years of experience in
financial management, business control and auditing
with renowned multinational and listed companies as
well as an international audit firm respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA, FCA, FCPA
(Aust), FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FAIA (Hon), CGA
(Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 70, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in April
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Li is the honorary chairman of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and an independent non-
executive director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He was
an independent non-executive director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (retired on 27 May 2021). Dr. Li was
a former member of The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee,
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and former adviser to the Ministry
of Finance on international accounting standards of the
People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 85, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the HKI
Group of Companies and a director of a number
of manufacturing and investment companies. He is
an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, Tongda Group Holdings
Limited and Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu
had served as a member of the Standing Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region acting as its Hong
Kong affairs adviser. He is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Jp, aged 85, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2004. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is presently
a common consultant for both K.C. Ho & Fong and
Yap & Lam, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former
president of The Law Society of Hong Kong and The
Law Association for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA).
He is also a former Hong Kong Affairs Adviser and has
served on various public and community organizations.
He was an independent non-executive director of Hung
Hing Printing Group Limited (retired on 25 May 2023).
Mr. Yap is currently an independent non-executive
director of eSun Holdings Limited.

Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley, aged 58, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2022. He is also a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lo is a
non-executive director and one of the founders of
Edvance International Holdings Limited (“Edvance
International”, SEHK: 1410). Mr. Lo has over 30 years
of experience in the information technology (“IT”)
industry. Prior to founding Edvance International in
2002, he was a software engineer of DATAP Systems
Division of Sandwell Inc., whose principal business
is the development of IT systems, from December
1989 to August 1992, and he was responsible for
system development. Mr. Lo was a system engineer
of Epic Data Division of Sylogist Ltd., which is
principally engaged in the development of IT systems,
from September 1992 to October 1995, and he was
responsible for system development. From 1999 to
August 2002, Mr. Lo was a technology director of Edeas
Limited, a digital agency based in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo
graduated from the University of British Columbia in
Canada with a Bachelor of Applied Science in Electrical
Engineering in May 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 56, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in USA.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain companies of the
Group, including Wong’s International USA Corporation
which is engaged in the development of the Company’s
original design and manufacturing business in the
North America market. He has more than 30 years of
experience in the field of electronics manufacturing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan has worked in
various leading international manufacturing companies
in USA. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Colorado,
Boulder.

Mr. Tu Wing Chor, David, aged 61, first joined the
Group in February 1995 and last rejoined the Group
in July 2023. Mr. Tu is currently Vice President of New
Business Development and Sales and Marketing of the
Group. He is responsible for leading the sales team to
solicit new customers for Suzhou factory in the Yangtze
River area and taking up customers for Vietnam factory.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Tu holds a qualification from Blue Ocean Strategic
and has many years of senior management experience
in the electronics manufacturing industry. He obtained a
PhD degree in Business Administration from Nueva Ecija
University of Science and Technology, Philippines.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 50, joined the Group
in August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant
to the Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for overseeing Administration
in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, formulating and
implementing strategies and business plans for the
development of the Group’s property leasing and
management. Ms. Wong is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated
extensive experience in various functions of office
management. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.

Ms. Yau Wai Ching, Monica, aged 58, joined the
Group in March 2016. She is currently Vice President
of Central Sourcing Management Department
and responsible for making necessary sourcing
and procurement for the electronic manufacturing
business of the Group. She is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. Ms. Yau holds a
Bachelor degree of Business in Transport and Logistics
Management from RMIT University, Australia. She has
more than 30 years of experience in the manufacturing
industry.
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Capacity

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

K2 &7

RGBS

Approximate

ZEREE percentage
Number of of the

ordinary shares issued shares

A
Wong Chung Mat, Ben

S HEAARZENEE 2 #E

Beneﬂmal owner and interest of

controlled corporation (Note)

TEH EmHEAA
Wong Yin Man, Ada

PR 2E BB A
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner
Ryl ERBEEA
Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

(FH&E)
136,828,569 28.60%
1,000,000 0.21%
1,837,500 0.38%
500,000 0.10%
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were held
in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat,
personally.

Ben

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Hong Kong Limited, which
was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2023,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2023, persons
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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TERRzER (H)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

REQARARGBZHERE Long positions in shares of the Company
HEE BT
BROBDL
Approximate
EBEREE percentage
TERRER HE L) Number of of the
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity ordinary shares issued shares
EREAA (M)
Salop Hong Kong Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 135,828,569 28.39%
ZEEA (HE2)
Cantrust (Far East) Limited Trustee (Note 2) 126,298,413 26.40%

E/q&r]\ﬁiﬁ
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny

ERA
Luk Kit Ching

Kong King International Limited

WLJ Holding Limited

Faf
Wong Chung Yin, Michael

HHER
Woo Sin Ming

E/EE\/@\

Wong Chung Yan, Claudia
New Chung Yan Limited
FHM

Everitt, Chung Chui

Sycamore Assets Limited

HSBC International Trustee Limited

EREA BREZRZEEFRIEMA (M)
Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 90,308,532 18.87%
founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3)

ERlEB AREGEER (M)
Beneficial owner and interest of spouse (Note 3) 90,308,532 18.87%

EmfEA A (MEE3()
Beneficial owner (Note 3(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%

REHER 2 #a (M)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%

ERBBARLRRHE 2B (HEd)
Beneficial owner and joint interest (Note 4) 78,526,001 16.41%

HABE R REBER (M)
Joint interest and interest of spouse (Note 4) 78,526,001 16.41%

2REFTZEIHBA (F55)
Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 5) 38,224,881 7.99%

B ERz #a (HE5)
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5) 38,224,881 7.99%

RRETZEMA (Hi26)

Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
Ba%EA A (H3E6)

Beneficial owner (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
EEINE)

Trustee (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
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Salop Hong Kong Limited & — @ T EFKELESR
BHARENHZAR -F2HAIEERFETHR
ANBZ =] —&ME-

Cantrust (Far East) Limited® 18 & (RIBEH K&
BB E & B) A AN A 7]126,298,4 130 I& 0 /R 45 5 4
HoRERNDBEBATEHER

(@) 88,073,532k K%M B Kong King
International LimitedR & — 18 & # {5 5L 3%
A M Cantrust (Far East) Limited &% 12 7&
ZAEFEAN B2 T X EES(C) °

(b) 19,112,441 B 5 % 19,112,440/% & 1»
2 Al Aldalyn Limited & Blueford Limited
BIE—E2REEEHR B iMCantrust (Far
East) Limited B Ert 255t A B 2E T
SCHIRES ©

THEBMEEREZTRERZE LA A (RIE
FHHREEEG) BN AR R R —#90,308,532%
BHOPEHERERS ZSERHBERATFHER:

(@ 1,000,000 &M AT RBEEBAFTE -

(b) 1,235,000 B ETEABEEZETF
fER2E L t#HA-

(c) 88,073,532 &M AKong King
International LimitediR & —E 2 # 55
HE mMEIEAGEERBEAR(REFS
M ERE G 0I) #Z = 58 2 Bl ¥t A - Cantrust
(Far East) Limitedfl] &1 A ° Kong
King International LimitedfEAWLJ Holding
Limited® & # A + i1 7% A & A £ Cantrust
(Far East) Limited2 &# A - T B/ L4
fE)2 8 Z &= - Kong King International
Limited * WLJ Holding Limited} Cantrust
(Far East) Limited® B # &R A E R —#
88,073,532/ ik 17 < #E % ©
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

Salop Hong Kong Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 126,298,413 shares in the Company. These shares
were held in the following capacity:

(a) 88,073,632 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Cantrust (Far
East) Limited was the trustee. Please refer to Note 3(c) below.

(b) 19,112,441 shares and 19,112,440 shares were held by
Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited respectively under a
discretionary trust, of which Cantrust (Far East) Limited was
the trustee. Please refer to Note 5 below.

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and his wife, Ms. Luk Kit Ching, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
90,308,532 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny
personally.

(b) 1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

(c) 88,073,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by virtue of the
SFO) and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was the trustee. Kong
King International Limited was wholly-owned by WLJ Holding
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East)
Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Ms. Luk Kit
Ching, Kong King International Limited, WLJ Holding Limited
and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed to be interested
in the same block of 88,073,532 shares.
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5. TREZTHER(REFHFRBAE KL AR
NAE19,112,441 R B 19 ] 19,112,4408% i 10
HaEEZ  Z5RH oA BAdalyn Limited &
Blueford LimitediBIE —IB2EETHE (BE A
38,224,881 H) MELBLETHWEA (IR
BESREE KD )ZETZE ¥ A Cantrust
(Far East) Limitedll 215 5E A ° Aldalyn Limited }&
Blueford LimitedfEANew Chung Yan Limited® &
%A Mm% A7) 8@ Cantrust (Far East) Limited
2&WR - THBLZ L New Chung Yan Limited
K Cantrust (Far East) Limited& B#E B AR
— 138,224,881 f% 1D 2 #E % ©

6. FABMEXTHRA(BREEFS RBEGA)RAE
NAEB1,379,167TRE P HERER ZERH
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
78,526,001 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 50,458,041 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
personally.

(b) 28,067,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

5. Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was deemed (by virtue of the SFO)
to be interested in 19,112,441 shares and 19,112,440 shares in the
Company which were held by Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited
respectively (38,224,881 shares in total) under a discretionary
trust, of which Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was regarded as the
founder (by virtue of the SFO) and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was
the trustee. Aldalyn Limited and Blueford Limited were wholly-owned
by New Chung Yan Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cantrust
(Far East) Limited. Each of Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, New
Chung Yan Limited and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was deemed to
be interested in the same block of 38,224,881 shares.

6. Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 31,379,167 shares in the Company which were held
by Sycamore Assets Limited under a discretionary trust, of which
Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee.
Sycamore Assets Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited. Each of Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Sycamore Assets
Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the same block of 31,379,167 shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2023, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 26 June 2020. No option has been
granted under the Scheme since its adoption date and
up to 31 December 2023. As at 1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023, the number of options available for
grant under the scheme mandate was 47,848,379.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules is as follows:

BH 1. Purpose
B EEREEHASE B B R K The purpose of the Scheme is to reward the
BEERZEERKRZ2EHE(RTX eligible participants (as described in paragraph 2
FoBRFM) VWHBEBREFERRARR below) who have contributed or will contribute to
HRR BB ZHRESEAAH the Group and to encourage them to work towards
MERNOZEEB: enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
2 HE 2. Participants
BENRSHEREESTEEIRRARY Eligible participants include Directors (including
HABHAEBEFRERMZASET Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
AKEBERRICES (BERTES and Independent Non-executive Directors)
IENTEERBIIERNTESE) RE and employees (whether full time or part time
B(TwmETRIxEBES) - employees) of any member of the Group who
the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.
AFHITZROEE 3. Total number of shares available for issue

BIEFTEIRER FTRITHRMODEE S
47,848,379h% - HHE M A E H HAK
NEIRETRMD 210% - B1TERE
ZET B R A R BT fa] £ 4t BE RS 5T &
BEMEMRITEZMBRITEER
EMA BT ZRNBEEE LR
TEBERNQATTEDETRND
30% °

The total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme mandate is 47,848,379 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date hereof. The overall limit on
the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of shares of the Company in issue,
unless approved by shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

The option period of a particular option is the
period during which the option can be exercised,
such period to be determined and notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making the
offer, and in any event such period of time shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1
year for which an option must be held after its date
of grant before such an option can be exercised
under the terms of the Scheme.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option
and the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered
to the grantee.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

8. Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
9. Life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years
commencing on 26 June 2020 up to and including
25 June 2030.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
associated corporations, or its specified undertaking
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every
Director or other officer of the Company and the
liquidator or trustees (if any), whether at present or in
the past, shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office, to the extent permitted by the
laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the details of the significant
investment are set out below:

BEEERLH
&F 10 B 37 it 26 BERBEE Proportion
AR EE Place of Number of  of ownership TE¥#
Name of company incorporation shares held interest  Principal activities
RERAREE REER
Talent Chain Investments Limited BVI 357 35.7%  Investment holding
BRERERRLR (M) BE TR NEFR
Crown Opal Investment Limited (Note) Hong Kong N/A 35.7%  Property holding

Mo :

HRIEEBR AR ATalent Chain Investments
Limited Z B & 2 7] °

RZZE-_=F+__A=+—H" RATalent
Chain Investments Limited & 7@ B % & B R A
A2 1% & 558 /A8 %2,071,500,0007T * % &
HHBAEEBREES% MARBERBE
2,072,700,0007T * BN AR &= E 42 & 7E28.4% ©

Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited is a subsidiary of Talent Chain
Investments Limited.

As at 31 December 2023, net investment in Talent
Chain Investments Limited and Crown Opal Investment
Limited was HK$2,071.5 million, which amount exceeds
5% of the total assets of the Group, and the fair value
was HK$2,072.7 million, which represents 28.4% of the
total assets of the Group.
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EEMA & 30pen Vantage Limited &
Talent Chain Investments Limited 2 & ZH #
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ERZFAELENMBEMM BN
BB HRRMIEI8

RARRDIR=ZZE—RF+—A=Z+tHBER
—E-RAF+ A +HRBEMAMIER
WA A B Talent Chain Investments Limited
RPN BER REBE ETHRE HEX
KRR —HBEIERG E—THBHRZA
o NGB R o
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the share of
profits of Talent Chain Investments Limited and Crown
Opal Investment Limited, which included in the share of
profits of joint ventures, was HK$49.5 million.

The investment in Talent Chain Investments Limited and
Crown Opal Investment Limited is holding a commercial
building in Kwun Tong, Two Harbour Square. It is the
Group’s preference to hold its interest in its attributable
share of the property project as much as possible for
leasing purposes after taking into account the Group’s
financial requirements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2023, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$1,020.1 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2023. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free. The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2023.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture
companies are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.
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Directors’ Report

GROUP BORROWINGS AND
CAPITALISED

INTEREST

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the
year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.
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= B Em AUDITOR

REZZHEHEABEEFH KBEBEAISE  The financial statements for the year have been audited
BREZ EEmER EHEBT- by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

REREZ® On behalf of the Board

T B WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
TREFTHAAK Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
HEE —E_HNF=A=-+=H Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to provide an overview of
the Group’s management of significant environmental,
social and governance issues. The report has been
prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange ESG Guide”) which is
applicable for the financial year of 2023. In the opinion
of the Directors of the Company, for the year under
review, the Company has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the Stock Exchange ESG
Guide.

This Report covers the core activities of the Group
which involve operations of the three manufacturing
factories located in Shenzhen, Vietnam and Suzhou
under our wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco
Wong’'s Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, Welco
Technology Vietham Company Limited and Welco
Technology (Suzhou) Limited, respectively. Furthermore,
in respect of the social aspect, the Company’s principal
office in Hong Kong is also involved. Additional
information in relation to the Group’s corporate
governance is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.
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BOARD MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s ESG objectives, strategies
and management approach; and sets the process
to evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG
issues. The Board regularly assesses and reviews
the environmental, social and governance risks and
opportunities, formulates its strategies and ensures the
establishment and maintenance of an effective control
systems on the environmental, social and governance
aspects of its business. The Board discusses, reviews
and evaluates all relevant ESG issues and the progress
towards the targets at least once a year. The Group
has set up an ESG Working Group which consists of
members from senior and middle management to assist
the Board to implement the ESG related strategies
and targets. The ESG Working Group strives to guide
and monitor various business functions to effectively
implement the measures to achieve the ESG strategies
and targets.

ESG STRATEGY

The Group’s ESG Strategy is to strive for high level of
positive outcomes on 5 major areas:

(i)  Commit to do business with high degree of ethical
governance;

(i) Provide high quality and safe products to the
customers with a well-established system to select
high quality, efficient and reliable suppliers;

(ii) Establish a good and supportive workplace that
upholds fair and equal treatment, competitive
welfare and incentive system and an effective
training program aiming for sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical workforce;
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BE dHEREARARK (&) ESG STRATEGY (continued)

(ivy BE2EZEETESH ZBZFH K (iv) Actively participate in local community activities
HERE BER2HAZHTRIEE- and good corporate citizenship through engaging
B RTFEEARRBE UBIEHRE various volunteering works, charity events and
BE XHEREEAT K education donation with an aim to create shared

value and support the people in need; and

() BUSTENREEEBX MMREE (v Setup asound environmental management system

2REEH RABERES RS NS to ensure compliance throughout the operations

B RERERESNAOBR- meanwhile actively control and endeavor to reduce
emissions, wastes and inefficient use of resources
and energy.

BEMBEINRERE HERER/ER

Our ESG areas of concern
o TEBEEREBMIEZ
_ Workplace Qua"ty and
Employee Relationship

o BB ERRIREIR . EE
Emissions and Energy Employment
Conservation . MTXR|
o AKX Labour Standards
Water Consumption . BEREEY
s BEEWER Development and Training
Waste Management . REEEZD
s FRAEMER Health and Safety
Other Use of Resources o HEIEN
* RIEREL Operating Practices
Climate Change . fEpEsEEE
Supply Chain Management
Product Responsibility
TAARF R BEERREE AL - REF
Also covered in the Corporate Anti-corruption
Governance Report of this o HEEE
Annual Report Community Investment
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report has been prepared in accordance with the
following principles and is in compliance with the ESG
reporting guideline:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Materiality

The interests and expectation of stakeholders is
taken into account through the engagement with
the stakeholders and the materiality assessment.

Quantitative

Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and source of conversion factors used
have been disclosed. Data reported in this report
have been evaluated and validated.

Balance

The information in this report is presented in a
format that the users can see the positive and
negative trends in performance on a year-to-year
basis.

Consistency

The report is prepared using consistent
methodologies. Information can be compared
on a year-to-year basis. Any significant variation
between reporting period can be identified and
explained.
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MATERIALITY

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture
and supply good quality products, while caring about
the community, environment and natural resources
and safeguarding the health and safety of the public.
The Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments to
our stakeholders, including shareholders and investors,
regulatory bodies, communities, customers, suppliers
and employees.

Our materiality assessment involves a four-step process:

1) Identification of a pool of relevant environmental,
social and economics topics;

2) Prioritization based on the impact and concerns of
stakeholders;

3) Validation and approval of the stakeholders
engagement results; and

4) Review and
improvement.

identification of the gaps for
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BEM (&) MATERIALITY (continued)

BPAPREFTHE 2 BEBUNLKES ZEE We realise that dialogues with stakeholders as well

&F? E”“TKEI?#%E&?&?@%@EEE as their feedback and concerns are crucial for the

BBERBEWMT: continuous enhancement and growth of the Group.
Communication channels are as follows:

Rt EAR BERE

Stakeholder Groups Engagement Channels

FE/RERE
Annual/interim reports
NGIEEEEN
BRREEE Company webpage
Shareholders and Investors PN
Circulars
BRERAE
General meetings
&
Reports
EERE R A
Regulatory Bodies Certifications/licensing
g% BEHREK
Meetings, emails and correspondences

BEEY
T E Charity events
Communities RS RS
Emails and correspondences
NSFERET
Company webpage
TR MEERE
Customers Satisfaction surveys

& BEREX
Meetings, emails and correspondences
HEm G
HrER Supplier assessment
Suppliers e2&% FHLEE
Meetmgs emails and correspondences

EI n%“z & ES) *i*B

Meetings and emails

8 T Ak

Performance assessment
BT =l R
Employees Training programs

YNGIVEE D)

Company events

NER

Notice board

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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MATERIALITY (continued)

The materiality matrix after external and internal
assessment is summarized as follows:

BB
Materiality Assessment

5.00 . .
20
4.50 a 16 O
12
2 0
ug o 6 ©a ©00
= g 13
W o ° 14 15
£2 350
o o
o
g 3.00
250 @
2.00 250 3.00 3.50 4.00 450 5.00
HBHENET 2
Important to stakeholders
e HE 1 i EE 1
Area ltem Topic Area Item Topic
ES B LTS Sl BRTEgE
Business Strategy and 12 Diversity and Equal
Performance Opportunity
AREE 15 Do Altaion and Retenti
. e alent Attraction and Retention
Gov;é:ﬁnce Risk Management Management
FaE 2 TRFARTIEREEL
An%-/corru tion 14 Employee Benefits and
P ®T Workplace Well-being
EEER Labour 15 ZRRE .
Law Compliance Development and Training
Eﬂg%rggy e(?ﬂoennsiumptlon 16 Occupational Health and Safety
AkEE 7 EIRBINE |
Water Management Employee and Labour Practice
BEREHMN ,
Greenhouse Gas Emission
£ RBE | s gi\ﬁ;é?él.‘jﬁ%&%‘% Land
nvironmenta ; upplier Management an
Use of Materials ECRRE Assessment
BEYER Product and EREERT2
Waste Management Service Product Quality and Safety
BHEE
Transportation Management
{rEnER HE HESE
Chemical Management Community Community Engagement
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group believes that environmental protection,
low carbon footprint, resources conservation and
sustainability development is the key trends in the
society. We are committed to minimize the impacts to
the environment and natural resources and continuously
improve the environmental sustainability of the business.
Our vision is to bring good quality products to the
customers around the world while actively control and
endeavor to reduce emissions, wastes and inefficient
use of resources and energy. An Environmental, Health
and Safety Committee (“EHSC”) has been established
to oversee environmental, health and safety matters.
Our manufacturing facilities are constantly managed
and monitored under international environmental quality
systems (ISO 14001 and ISO 45001).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Our Environmental Policy includes:

Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection;

Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to eliminate
or minimize environmental impact due to hazardous
substances or wastes;

Identify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries;

Conserve all resources through efficient usage;

Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements;

Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements;

Meet international hazardous substance regulations
and green requirements from specific customers;
and

Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2023, our NOx, SOx and PM were
1,614.2 kgs, 1.05 kgs and 115.62 kgs respectively.
Comparing with the result in 2022, the decrease
was mainly due to shipment required local vehicle
transportation decrease in 2023. Relevant departments
have been taking measures to maintain vehicles in good
conditions in order to minimise air emission.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2023, our CO, emission was 17,619 tons and electricity
consumptions was 29,833,158 kwh. Comparing with
the result in 2022, there was 0.26% increase due to
the Vietnam plant started mass production in 2023.
The Company considered great importance on energy
efficiency to minimise the greenhouse gas emission.

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.
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BR (&) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
M RENEER (&) Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

BMERIEERER  —| /b BE X BE  Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions,
ROBFE U RIR S AR M 7 EEE AT  emission of CO,, energy consumption; and improve
BEE: energy efficiency include:

— BEBmEZLREAE:

- BUELEEBENREEGNER &
BER

— BRREWHMEERASESE:

— EBUERALE REITEE45EERM
B)ZE

— BERNIPRRAGREDRKRESED:

- BRREZHeEle B KiPaintEMA
REFVRYI TR £ E RERTR

— RARERELRERRKE:

iH

— {FHALEDERBZLEE:
—  FH#HVACZE % &

— HBEEZRMOEREREREIEEEE
R o A B A R A Bk BE AR o

Replace low efficiency conditioner units;

Optimize the production areas and production lines
usage to save energy;

Turn company cars from oil to electrical;

Optimize the air conditioning temperature without
affecting humidity at the production floors;

Continue the effort to replace part of the electricity
by solar energy;

Explore more opportunity to save energy, i.e.:
applying iPaint to the roof of a production building
of our factory in Shenzhen;

Installed variable frequency devices of air
conditioning systems;

Replaced common lamps with LED;
Upgraded HVAC system; and
Continue the trees plantation around our

manufacturing facilities to help absorbing carbon
emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Water Consumption

We endeavor to conserve water effectively in the
operations and implemented water conservation
programs as follow:

- Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program;

— Reduced chiller running time and improved the
utilization;

- Upgraded the Deionised water system with new
technology and high efficiency;

—  Control the pipe water valve in toilet and public
area, reduce the water valve flow rate by 20% to
save water; and

- Replaced with infrared sensor faucet in toilet.

In 2023, water consumption was 200,521 tons which
was decreased 31% by comparing with the result in
2022, mainly due to improve the efficiency of water
usage.

Waste Management

In 20283, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 152 tons and 1,147 tons respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2022, hazardous wastes increased
34.4% mainly due to the volume increased for the
PCB scrap materials and also waste activated carbon.
Non-hazardous wastes increased by 18.9% mainly
due to the Vietnam plant started mass production in
2023. With the aim to create a sustainable society,
we conduct strict classification of hazardous wastes
and non-hazardous wastes, and hazardous wastes
are stored in special areas, handled by well-trained
employees in accordance with working instructions and
disposed through accredited vendors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste Management (continued)

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.

Other Use of Resources

Package materials are used to protect our products
in order to minimise the risk of damage during
transportation. In 2023, package materials used was
1,598 tons which was 1.2% higher than the usage in
2022, mainly caused by the Vietnam plant started mass
production and shipment increase in 2023. To reduce
the usage of packing materials, we implemented recycle
box for more customers to replace the carton box.

Climate Change

Climate change is mainly caused by the emission
of greenhouse gases due to burning fossil fuels for
energy uses, steelmaking, cement production and
forest loss. The impact of climate change has affected
the economies throughout the world. The Group
recognized the importance of addressing the climate
related challenges and opportunities and supporting the
transition to the low carbon economy. The Group has
identified and assessed the potential climate related
risks including physical risks and transition risks as well
as their potential financial impacts to the business. The
Group has developed a climate change strategy and
formulated various actions to cope with climate change.
Also, the Group reviews relevant law and regulations
periodically to ensure the requirements are timely
updated and followed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate Change (continued)

The Company is adopting the carbon neutrality concept
and is committed to reduce the greenhouse gases by
minimising the energy consumption and improving the
energy efficiency from our daily operations through
various energy saving programs for examples, using
lower emission or renewable energy and tree plantation
etc.

Our Group has three manufacturing factories located in
Shenzhen, Suzhou and Vietnam. They are not located
in areas where disruption to the Group’s manufacturing
activities may happen due to sustained high
temperature or extreme bad weather conditions. The
Group also recognises the impacts of climate change
which includes both global warming and weather
patterns change can affect our operation and safety
of its people. The Company has adopted appropriate
measures for extreme weather events. The Company
has comprehensive guidelines to all employees for
typhoon and rainstorm warnings in accordance with
the government regulations. The Company has strictly
followed the measures for employees working in hot
weather and comply with the government regulations.
The Company has the corresponding facilities to prevent
the related employees working in high temperature
environment due to hot weather and closely monitor the
weather information for work arrangements on time.

The Group is also actively looking for the potential
business opportunities to enhance the operational
resilience and potential business growth. The Group
is incorporating climate change considerations in
procurement processes to use more environmental
friendly and recycled materials, increase the use of
renewable energy and improve the energy consumption
in our production process. As customers demand for
sustainable, green and low carbon products grows, this
can lead to a positive impact on our future business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Targets

We aim to minimise the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimising logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.
Environmental targets and plans are conveyed to the
employees to maintain an environmental cautious
workplace.

The Group is committed and has formulated a series
of environmental measures and set up the targets to
reduce its operational impact on the environment.

The Company has set the targets in Year 2025 to
reduce intensities of energy use, greenhouse gas
emission, waste and water consumption by 5%
compared to the result of Year 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

In the beginning of Spring 2023, our Shenzhen factory
organised a Tree Planting Day with the great support
from our staff. We understand that it is important to
plant trees to absorb and capture carbon for our natural
environment. We have worked together for our carbon
neutrality.

During 2023, we have applied iPaint to the roof of a
production building of our factory in Shajing, Shenzhen.
iPaint is an energy-saving product developed by a local
university, which comprises an electricity-free cooling
coating to be painted on the roof or external wall for
the cooling of the room. Our initial trial run indicates
that the employment of the product has the effect of
reducing room temperature by 5-6% and electricity
usage should be reduced as a result.

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas
of recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, diversity and other benefits
and welfare. We adopt a remuneration policy which
is commensurate with job nature, qualification and
experience of employees. In addition to the provision
of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded
to employees based on individual performance.
Remuneration packages and policies are reviewed
periodically to ensure that compensation and benefits
are in line with the market-competitive pay level. We
arrange with some hospitals in China to ensure our
staffs can receive immediate medical services when
working outside their home countries. The Group is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance,
achieving the highest standard of integrity, probity
and accountability by enforcing Whistleblowing Policy.
Employees at all levels are expected to conduct
themselves with integrity, impartiality and honesty which
enable our stakeholders to have trust and faith in the
Group to take care of their needs and to fulfill its social
responsibility.

In the areas of recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal, statutory laws and
regulations are strictly complied with. Overtime is on
voluntary basis and is compensated according to the
local laws.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

We value diversity, equal opportunity and anti-
discrimination in our workforce regardless of gender,
race, age, marital status and nationality. To promote
the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work of our
staff, the Company has joined the gender focal point
network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set up
by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between
the Company and the Government with a target to
enhance our gender awareness and understanding of
gender mainstreaming.

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labor Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/
or compulsory prison labour to work. We also follow
the highest standard regarding the social insurance
requirements for the employees’ contributions.

The Company has a strict recruitment procedure
including checking identity documents and performing
background verifications to ensure the employment
candidates are lawfully employable. No employment is
allowed before the verification process is successfully
completed. It is very unlikely child and forced labour will
be hired.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Labour Standards (continued)

The Group is not aware of non-compliance of child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations (including but
not limited to: “Employment of Children Regulations”
and “Employment Ordinance”). To comply with the laws
and regulations related to child and force labour, any
employment will be terminated immediately in case of
any non-compliance case is discovered.

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute
to the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorised institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and supervisory skills,
safety and sales product and technical training, etc.
In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-off for
employees who take external training programs relevant
to their duties and responsibilities. We have internal
certified trainers to train relevant employees for required
technical certifications. Employees may also join
external training programs on certifications required.
We also recruit some graduates each year to take up
first level jobs and develop them to the upper levels, for
examples, technicians, buyer, planner, etc.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free from
danger and hazards to our employees. It is our principle
that occupational safety and health of employees
should be given the first and foremost consideration at
work. We implement our safety management system
in accordance with the OHSAS 18001 standard.
Health and safety issues concerning our employees
are escalated to the EHSC for decisions and actions.
In addition, certain specific positions, such as nurse
and safety officers, are employed to ensure that the
workplace is safe and that safety device and protections
are adequate to avoid any possible injuries arising from
our work. An examination of whether the workplace
is contaminated by particles is conducted by a
government-recognised third party on an annual basis.
We also arrange relevant workers to take body check
periodically. Furthermore, we provide our employees
with regular intensive training programs to alert their
safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organise and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organised by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety
(“OH&S”) Policy:

1.

To protect environment and provide safe and
healthy working conditions for the prevention of
work-related injury and ill health through continuous
education.

To conserve energy & resources and prevent
pollution through elimination of hazardous
substances or wastes.

To prevent work-related injuries and ill health
through elimination of hazards and reduction of
OH&S risk.

To comply with the relevant International and
National laws and regulations on Environmental
and OH&S as well as with customer’s specific
requirements on management of hazardous
substances in product.

To review the effectiveness of the Environmental
and OH&S management system through audits to
make continuous improvements.

To encourage the consultation and participation of
employees through worker’s representatives.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands the importance of the supply
chain management for sustainability and committed to
establish continuous and long term relationship with the
suppliers to procure high quality materials efficiently.
We have suppliers from different regions globally.
A supplier management system is established for
selecting and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality
of the purchased materials complies with the relevant
laws and regulations. Based on adequate qualification,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department. The
Group only makes purchases from suppliers listed in
approved vendor list. A new supplier can only be added
to the approved vendor list upon detailed assessment
and approval according to the supplier management
system. The suppliers recognise the importance of our
requirements on business ethics, health and safety
environment and public responsibilities. The suppliers
need to confirm to meet the requirements and are
checked according to supplier management system
before approval. Regular review is conducted with key
suppliers on their scorecard performance. Suppliers falil
to meet the Group’s standards may result in termination
of the cooperation.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our
customers around the world is our main objective. Our
Policy includes:

— Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality;

- Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations as
well as management’s direction; and

—  Comply with all relevant legislative requirements on
environmental and occupational health and safety.

The company has established quality assurance
procedure to ensure the quality of incoming materials
and process quality, final product inspection. Product
quality and safety are ensured by defining correct
manufacturing process and process controls Regular
internal reviews are conducted to ensure the products
meet with the customer expectations. Regular product
inspections by both internal and external professional
parties also constitute an important part of the overall
safety program. Reliability tests are conducted to
evaluate product risks. Our quality systems are in
compliance with international standards like ISO 9001,
TS 16949 and ISO 13485 standards.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

The Company is fully aware of the importance in
protecting intellectual property rights of our own
and customers’ intellectual property rights. The
Company has signed non-disclosure agreements with
the customers and suppliers and has a strict policy
to govern the rules and procedures to protect the
confidential information, personal data and intellectual
property rights of the customers and the suppliers.
The Company also applied certificates to protect the
own intellectual property rights for our products and
trademark. Our information security systems are in
compliance with international standard ISO 27001. Our
internal policies and procedures for information are
based on this standard.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Anti-Corruption Policy and Code of Conduct
provide guidelines to all of our staff to meet the
high standards of integrity and honesty in their daily
operation internally and externally in order to prevent
and detect any kinds of bribery and corruption
prohibited by local laws and internal regulations.
This is also to ensure that the Group operates to the
high standards of business behaviour and ethics in
our engagement with customers, business partners,
shareholders, employees and the business community.
Employees are required to sign an undertaking not to
engage in any acts of corruption when being employed.
Business partners are notified of the Group’s Supplier
General Rules of Conduct to ensure their integrity in
the dealings with the Group. We conduct periodical
training in respect of these policies to employees and
refreshing training to employees involved in purchasing
and engineering every year. We also conduct regular
seminars on integrity every year. We have provided
reading materials relating to anti-corruption to form part
of the Directors’ training during 2023. We have zero
tolerance towards non-compliance of the Group’s Anti-
Corruption Policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
the Whistleblowing Policy to encourage disclosure of
any misconduct or irregularities to the Company in a
confidential way. All reported cases are handled with
care by the Group and are investigated in a fair and
proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the twelfth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

The Group also participated in various events organised
by voluntary organizations to support and enhance
family functioning, and endeavor to contribute to
the building of a humane and caring society in Hong
Kong. We support fund raising for providing immediate
assistance to those suffered from misfortunes and to
promote environmental protection in community.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role
in various volunteering works, charity events and
education donation with an aim to create shared value
and support the people in need. Besides engaging
our employees to participate in those community and
charity events, we encourage them to bring along
their family members. In 2023, the direction of our
community services was focused on the elderly and
those grassroot families in need.
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e (&) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (E) Community Investment (continued)

RZZE-_=F—HA+H8 AESREEHFSF - On 10 January 2023, to celebrate the Chinese New
RKABEBAEREIRFTZL EIEL  Year, the Company delivered festive gift to the elderly in
ERACEERTEMTIRREKREAR the SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Home and
EEPLOHMREXESHAEY A% Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Wong Yee Jar Jat
RORBE Kz o Day Care Centre for warmth and care.

RZEZ=FZA=Z+=H HMHFEI On 23 February 2023, our Shenzhen factory sent
ITHAERBALRERRRZE FEM K condolences and warmth to the disabled and the poor
A o compatriot.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment (continued)

On 23 April 2023, the Company made a donation to
Lingnan University for “Lee and Man Paper Lingnan
Walkathon 2023” which is to raise funds for “LU
Entrepreneurship Fund”. The Fund supports students
and young alumni for their ESG-focused start-up
projects in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area.

BT e secioce X A RN F] @ Lingnanii M x
EIL) L sian Paer iamufucuring Limited gnan=_H 2

HREN Stort-up Sponsors

RZE-_=ZFAA-_+WUB ARFRHE
[1CBZEET2023 | B RIEEREH -
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On 24 September 2023, the Company participated in
Yan Chai Charity Walk 2023, a fundraising activity for
community services.

WONG’S
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SOCIAL (continued)

Community Investment (continued)

On 26 September 2023, approaching the Mid-Autumn
Festival and National Day, our Shenzhen factory sent
holiday blessings and gifts to the elderly in the Wan
Feng Community Service Station, wishing the elderly
good health and happy holidays.
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FARENIEE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
a) RIE a) Environmental
HERE Quantitative disclosure
BRERER -—T-=% T CF
Key
Performance
Indicators 2023 2022
BRERY (2F) Air emissions (kgs)
-y - NOx Al.1 1,614.20 1,617.82
-Haly - SOx Al.1 1.05 1.05
By -PM A1.1 115.62 115.63
BEREHMN (B) Greenhouse gas emission (tons) A2 17,619 17,789
BUHEBNMRZEREBHEN Greenhouse gas emission per revenue A2 5.60 5.23
(REEEEELRENHHIES) (tons per revenue HK$' million)
BEEEN (B) Hazardous waste (tons) A13 152 113
BURBNNEEEEY Hazardous waste per revenue A13 0.05 0.03
(REEREETRENELEY) (tons per revenue HK$'million)
BEREN(B) Non-hazardous waste (tons) Al4 1,147 965
BRRENNEEREY Non-hazardous waste per revenue Al4 0.36 0.28
(AR ETNENELRY) (tons per revenue HK$'million)
RRER-HEE (TRE) Energy consumption - Electricity (kwh) A2.1 20,833,158 29,756,646
i B MR B Energy consumption per revenue A2.1 9,482 8,740
-REE (REAUEETWHNEEE - Electricity (kwh per revenue HK$'million)
THE)
ke (1) Water consumption (tons) A2.2 200,521 290,772
BUHENNEKE Water consumption per revenue A2.2 63.73 85.41
(REB%EETRENFEKERE) (tons per revenue HK$'million)
BEMHERE (B) Packing material use (tons) A2.5 1,598 1,579
FHEEUNBENRERE Packing material use per revenue A2.5 0.51 0.46

(ZEEYBETNENERER)

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

(tons per revenue HK$ million)
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BASRAE MIEE () KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
a) RIE (&) a) Environmental (continued)
—RIRE General disclosure
BREN B
Key Performance
Indicators Sections
BRIV EENERERAERELEZA  Description of emissions target set and A15 BnESER/ B2
YR steps taken to achieve them Emissions and Energy
Conservation/Targets
RIREEEREZEENMN T RIELAT  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous A16 BENER/BE
AVMEESERARNELAEMRDA  wastes are handled, and a description of Waste Management/Targets
TR reduction target set and steps taken to
achieve them
Wl UM REERNEBERAZTEL  Description of energy use efficiency target set A2.3 B REOEE/BE
BEMFERM S E and steps taken to achieve them Emissions and Energy
Conservation/Targets
RkRERKRE LA BEMEE AR Description of whether there is any issue in A2.4 BX/BE
UMBKSIREERARIELEZMAR  sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Water Consumption/Targets
igbz efficiency target set and steps taken to
achieve them
RUEBEDURERRAERNEAYER  Description of the significant impacts of activities A3.1 BiZ
ERBERERYENTE on the environment and natural resources and Targets
the actions taken to manage them
RMBERUHEHARAEEYENER  Desoription of the significant climate-related A4 RREL

RIFREZE REHTY

AR EREFERERBMPIRETHE (1)
EHHEE@ENAALY: m%ﬂ:%&%ﬁfuwmﬁk @)
R - B R N A m R 8
BRERBHEMENAEDENAESE -

issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the Company, and the actions
taken to manage them

Notes:

evaluate the above performance.

Climate Change

Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used to

Only emissions data of NOx, SOx and PM from vehicles is

calculated. Towngas and LPG is not applicable.

(3)  The GHG emissions calculation is based on electricity consumption.
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BASRAE MIEE () KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
b) ##& b) Social
—REE General disclosure
BREN R
Key Performance Section
BEABERBRNIRRETHEAZREAN  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B1 R
e laws and regulations relating to employment Employment
BEEURFETZNBRRETAMEER  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B2 EEaARe
BIKER laws and regulations relating to health and Health and Safety
safety
ROAFANBERFEAT2HEE A% Description of occupational health and safety B2.3 fEEaz?
BORERRE measures adopted, and how they are Health and Safety
implemented and monitored
BEAERAEIBATIERENMEREE  Disclosure of policies on improving employees’ B3 BRRE
MEE LGS knowledge and skills for discharging duties Development and Training
at work and description of training activities
BREEBMIEETREHATHRERET Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B4 LTER
BEERRAFINER laws and regulations relating to preventing child Labour Standards
and forced labour
Rl RREENNEEABLET RE Description of measures to review employment B4.1 BTEE
2T practices to avoid child and forced labour Labour Standards
FlEBBEERBNEEREBERAMANA  Description of steps taken to eliminate such B4.2 BTER|
TR practices when discovered Labour Standards
BEAHERERENRE R CRRBRER Disclosure of policies on managing environmental B5 HEEEE
and social risks of supply chain Supply Chain Management
Rl aBHpEEESARMORERLE  Description of practices used to identify B5.3 HEEER

RROEH ARAERTRERNE

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored

Supply Chain Management
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BASRAE MIEE () KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
b) #H& (&) b) Social (continued)
—REE (&) General disclosure (continued)
BREN Bg
Key Performance Section
RIEBEREAERFEZARREARRE  Description of practices used to promote B5.4 fREgEE
WED D REBRRTREERE environmentally preferable products and Supply Chain Management

services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored

BEEEFREERNRENEEER S Disclosure of policies and compliance with B6 EREF
BE RRELRSEARBAFANTR relevant laws and regulations relating to health Product Responsibility
REBTFERZRRAMNER and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

HilEgEERRENGEEEBHOED Description of practices relating to observing and B6.3 EREF
protecting intellectual property rights Product Responsibility
REEEEHRERILBER b RiAE Description of consumer data protection and B6.5 EmEE
PIRREER privacy policies, and how they are implemented Product Responsibility

and monitored

BEABENLGR 9% JHERABEMIR  Disclosure of policies and compliance of relevant B7 REG
REBTERZERAMNER laws and regulations relating to bribery, Anti-corruption

extortion, fraud and money laundering

wihEaERERER ARAEHTRE  Description of preventive measures and B7.2 REB
ERRA whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are Anti-corruption

implemented and monitored

WAMESRE ITREMREFE Description of anti-corruption training provided to B7.3 RE&S
directors and staff Anti-corruption
BEMEBLENR Disclosure of policies on community engagement B8 HERE

Community Investment

EFTEHER (fIM7E BHEEE SIEK  Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, B8.1 HERERE
g X B5) environmental concerns, labour needs, heath, Community Investment

culture, sport)
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KEY PERFORMANCE

(continued)

b) Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure

Employment

INDICATORS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a total workforce of 2,581 employees. The

breakdown of the total workforce and employee
turnover rates are as follows:

R ENIEEBT.A KPI B1.1
BIgE
Number of Employees
—E-=F —EF-=
EMHRESNETITHAE Total workforce by gender 2023 2022
= Male 1,149 1,416
X Female 1,432 1,635
BIgE
Number of Employees
—E-=fF —E-=
EEBEAEINETIHY Total workforce by employment type 2023 2022
£ Full time 2,213 2,439
KB R Part time/Temporary 368 612
BIHE
Number of Employees
—E-=fF —E-=
EHBEEIMNETIHAE Total workforce by geographical region 2023 2022
5 Hong Kong 78 88
B 3 Mainland China 2,263 2,745
XN Overseas 240 218
BIgE
Number of Employees
—E-= —E-—
BERARNEINETIHY Total workforce by age group 2023 2022
305 AT Below 30 628 827
3057 £505% 30 -50 1,819 2,089
5057 A Above 50 134 135

74 ITREREESRAT 2023 FF
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BAEENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)
b) #H& (&) b) Social (continued)
HERE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
EiE (&) Employment (continued)
BERENEEB.2 KPI B1.2
Bokl
Percentage
—E-= —_E-_—
BMRESMWETIRAE* Employee turnover rate by gender* 2023 2022
5 Male 42.1% 59.8%
X Female 23.1% 31.5%
Bok
Percentage
—E-=fF T
RERARE 5 M E IR LXZE*Employee turnover rate by age group* 2023 2022
305 AT Below 30 62.6% 86.1%
308 £505% 30 -50 25.0% 33.6%
508 A £ Above 50 3.0% 14.1%
Bok
Percentage
Employee turnover rate —EZZF —E- =
R BESMWETIRAE* by geographical region* 2023 2022
&5 Hong Kong 7.9% 26.1%
A Mainland China 30.2% 47.1%
BN Overseas 46.7% 18.8%
* EAEBEI (HPPEBERIA ET * Full time employees only (included staff and worker, but
BEEYBREL) RAREOEER excluded part time/temporary employees). Turnover includes
SR RA R EEERR - voluntary resignation or retirement and termination.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

b)

Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)
Health and Safety

KPI B2.1 and B2.2

During the reporting period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with health
and safety-related laws and regulations that would
have a significant impact on the Group. There was
no work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year. In
addition, there were 21 days of lost day due to
2 work injury cases during the reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

b) Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)

TR R Development and Training
REEHAN ANEEB TERE KIS The statistic figures of employee development and
SR 8BTS - training during the reporting period for the Group
were as follows:

B#ENIESEB3.1KB3.2 KPI B3.1 and B3.2

BOk

Percentage
—E-=E —E-F

BEHBBANIZIETITSL  The percentage of employees trained by gender 2023 2022
3 Male 98.3% 98.0%
8 Female 97.3% 97.1%

Bal

Percentage
REREREI N The percentage of employees trained by —E-=F —E-CfF
SFHEIE employee category 2023 2022
SR b Assistant Manager and above 87.4% 87.9%
BRBE BEREE Officer, staff and supervisor 94.3% 92.7%
IA Worker 99.9% 99.6%
N

Hours
BHREA NS The average training hours completed per —EC_=F —EB-CF
EREE T employee by gender 2023 2022
3 Male 22.1 24.4
& Female 24.7 238

NS

Hours
REREREI N The average training hours completed per —EC-=F —E--F
YRR ZAGE employee by employee category 2023 2022
Bl A Assistant Manager and above 20.1 13.6
BRBE BMEREE Officer, staff and supervisor 22.1 19.2
IA Worker 24.2 26.0
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KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

(continued)

b)

Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)
Labour Standards

KPI B4.1 and B4.2

During the reporting period, the Group has
not identified material non-compliance of child
and forced labour-related laws and regulations
(including but not limited to Employment of
Children Regulations and Employment Ordinance).

Supply Chain Management

During the reporting period, there were 691
suppliers, increased by 46 while compared
with 645 suppliers in 2022, mainly due to more
productions were started to support 2023 business
growth in our Vietnam factory. And the breakdown
by region was as follows:

B8R E MIEEBS.1 KPI B5.1

—E-=E —E-CF
Rt BRE S NHEERSE Number of suppliers by geographical region 2023 2022
e Hong Kong 214 192
B i Mainland China 270 276
JEM North America 38 28
G Europe 32 23
DMEMER Rest of Asia 137 126
By Total 691 645

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

(continued)

b)

Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)
Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1 and B6.2

During the reporting period, there was no incident
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified and was aware by the Group. No product
sold or shipped was subjected to recall for safety
and health reasons.

Anti-corruption
KPI B7.1

The Group was not aware of any concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the reporting
period.

Community Investment
KPI B8.2

During the reporting period, the Group donated a
total of approximately HK$71,000 by participating
in community activities, including making charitable
donations to Yan Chai Hospital and Lingnan 2023
Walkathon. Total 36 hours contributed by corporate
volunteers, including 32 hours of our Shenzhen
factory sent condolences and warmth to the
disabled and the poor compatriot and 4 hours of
condolence in Shengpu Street Nursing Home in
Suzhou.

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), except that (a) the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are occupied by
the same person, which deviates from code provision
C.2.1; (b) the existing Whistleblowing Policy of the
Company does not accept anonymous reporting, which
deviates from code provision D.2.6; and (c) the current
Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company do not include the responsibility to review
and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, which deviates
from code provision E.1.2(i). Details are explained in
this Report under the paragraphs “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, “Risk Management and Internal
Control” and “Remuneration Committee”, respectively.

During the year of 2023 and up to the date of this
Report, the Board had reviewed and, where appropriate,
made necessary changes to the corporate governance
practices of the Company in order to ensure continued
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code
(other than certain deviations mentioned above). Details
are disclosed in this Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board
is ultimately responsible for the development and
implementation of the Group’s corporate governance
practices, sustainable performance of the Company,
consistent achievement of business plans and
compliance with statutory as well as corporate
obligations. Matters which may be discussed in Board
meetings include the formulation of the Group’s
strategies and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital commitments; approval of matters
relating to the Company’s constitution and share capital,
and change of board members and auditors; delegation
of powers by establishment of board committees;
review of corporate governance and the maintenance
of appropriate risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises five Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the Administrative
Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel, Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund and Mr.
Chan Wai Ming, Hermes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Administrative Committee also delegates
specific tasks to the management, which includes
the preparation of accounts; implementation of
strategies and policies approved by the Board; day-
to-day monitoring of budgets; implementation of
specific business and work projects; implementation of
corporate governance, risk management and internal
control procedures and other compliance matters.
Management presents reports to the Administrative
Committee (and other delegated Board Committee) for
its review and guidance whenever necessary.

The vision, mission and core values of the Company
have been set out. The Company is committed to
becoming an advanced technology leader and service
provider to contribute to our humanity, society,
customers, shareholders and employees. The Board,
assisted by senior and middle management, is
responsible to develop and promote a desired company
culture in alignment therewith throughout all levels of
the Company, including the core values focus on ethics,
customer passion, respect, teamwork, openness,
managing for results, competence, commitment to
success, merit and excellence.

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimise the risk of
unauthorised or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorised to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

To ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board, various mechanisms have been established
by the Company. Such mechanisms include (i) adoption
of a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for nomination and appointment of Board members
to ensure that the power to nominate and appoint is
rested on the Nomination Committee and the Board
as a whole; (i) a balanced composition of Executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors fulfilling
the independence criteria under the Listing Rules; (iii)
emphasis on board diversity as an important driver to
enable objective decisions to be made; (iv) promote
a culture of openness during discussion at board
meetings; (v) establishment of Board Committees to
specialize in clearly-defined functions delegated by
the Board whenever necessary; and (vi) the Board and
its Committees may access to other channels where
independent views and input are available (e.g. external
independent professional advice) at the Company’s
expense in order to assist the performance of their
duties.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 21 to 25 of this Annual Report.

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2023
at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the
overall strategy, operation, financial performance,
dividend payments, risk management and internal
control systems, Directors’ remuneration and corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular
Board meetings and the 2023 annual general meeting
of the Company was as follows:

EZEeRLRER
Attendance at
Board meetings

BRAGHER
Attendance at
general meeting

BITEE Executive Directors

FRKELE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4/4 11
(FERERTBAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

FTEHLL Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 11

BrEEL Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 11

ReK BT & Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1

BRERLE Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 4/4 1/1

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

FREMBL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 11

GRABL Dr. Yu Sun Say 4/4 0/1

EXEAE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 11

BEREELE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 4/4 11
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Due to business commitment, Dr. Yu Sun Say (being an
Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) was unable to attend
the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company.
Pursuant to the code provision F.2.2, he had appointed
other member of the Remuneration Committee as his
delegate to attend and answer relevant questions at the
meeting on behalf of the Remuneration Committee.

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is
supplied with all necessary information to enable it
to consider the matters to be discussed. A formal
agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All business
transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are
made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. If necessary, Directors also
have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.
The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.

Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
record of training received during the year of 2023. The
means of such training are as follows:

B3NFE R Means of Training
BITES Executive Directors

TAKEE BIEM AL Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben reading material

(FEFETHAER) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
TEHuL BIEME  Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada reading material
RFERL BFEHM KL Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel reading material
REK B A BIEM AL Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund reading material
PR (B AR 4 4 @I BEMEL Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes e-training/reading material/
mie  RrHae seminar/webinar

BAKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TRE[L fEk& /B@EM# Dr Li Ka Cheung, Eric forum/reading material/
BIRE,/ training programme/
Hmie  RrHTe seminar/webinar
BRAFL BIEME @& E Dr. YuSun Say reading material/webinar
EXELE BIEM B RIS Mr Alfred Donald Yap reading material/webinar
BEERE BIEM B @EEWETE M Lo Wai Ho, Ashley reading material/webinar
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(@) Both positions require in-depth knowledge
and considerable experience of the Group’s
business. Candidates with the suitable knowledge,
experience and leadership are difficult to find
both within and outside the Group. If either
of the positions is occupied by an unqualified
person, the Group’s performance could be gravely
compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors
can provide an effective check and balance
mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent Non-
executive Directors comprise a good mix of industrial,
financial, legal and information technology expertise
to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory
requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has provided an annual confirmation of independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
112 of the Bye-laws of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Alfred Donald
Yap, and one Executive Director, namely Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has
been adopted by the Remuneration Committee under
which the Remuneration Committee shall perform an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve Executive Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration, reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
and making recommendations on the remuneration
of Directors and senior management. The current
Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
do not include the responsibility under code provision
E.1.2(I) to review and/or approve matters relating to
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
The existing share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of
the Company is a traditional scheme for the benefit
of the employees and other eligible participants.
Implementation of such Scheme is governed by formal
and transparent procedures under the scheme rules
adopted by the shareholders of the Company, including
the requirements for specific approval from the Board,
Independent Non-executive Directors or shareholders
where necessary. It is considered that the Board as a
whole is more efficient and effective for discharging
the responsibility to oversee matters relating to the
Scheme. Any share options granted to a Director or
senior management will form part of the individual
remuneration package and therefore fall under the
scope of the Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
paid to the Directors and senior management; and
approved the proposal of the 2024 remuneration
packages of individual Directors for recommendation to
the Board.

FMEZEeN T _—FEHET— X2 The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in
FYMEESZTENZANEH ZEEXR 2023. The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
AN members at this meeting was as follows:
=

Attendance
BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BERAET (£E) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 1/1
ERELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HITES Executive Director
BRFEEH+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1
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The Company’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy is to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive
level of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate
Directors to run the Group successfully. In determining
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors,
reference should be made to their duties and
responsibilities with the Company, market benchmark
as well as individual and business performance. The
remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors
should reflect their duties and responsibilities,
anticipated time and effort required and their
commitment to the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
which comprises the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Alfred Donald Yap and Mr. Lo Wai
Ho, Ashley.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and considered
making recommendation to the Board on re-election of
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2023.

e #mZHEXR  The attendance of the Nomination Committee members
wmr at this meeting was as follows:
=

Attendance
HITES Executive Director
TRKEE (FE) Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman) 1/1
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERESLE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HEEEREE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s Nomination Policy is to serve as a
guideline in order to ensure that there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for nomination
of Directors with suitable experience and capabilities
to maintain and improve the competitiveness of the
Company. According to the Policy, where a need is
identified and arises for a new Director or replacement
Director, a list of potential candidates should be
complied based on recommendations or referrals
from existing Board members, management team,
other individuals who know the candidates and, if
it deems appropriate, a professional search firm.
The Nomination Committee shall conduct an initial
evaluation of the potential candidates based on the
character, integrity, commitment, knowledge and ability,
diversity of perspectives (with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company), accomplishment in
his/her own field, professional or personal reputation,
particular experience or expertise relevant to the current
needs of the Board, and in case of a new Independent
Director candidate, whether he would be considered
as independent. The Nomination Committee shall then
select and recommend one or more candidates for
interview. Lastly, the best available candidate shall
be recommended for consideration by the Board as
a whole. For determining whether a retiring Director
is eligible for re-election at a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
contribution of such retiring Director and other relevant
criteria set out above; and then make recommendation
to the Board for consideration.
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DIVERSITY

The Company recognises the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Nomination Policy mentioned above.

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that considerable diversity
perspectives exist in the existing Board of the Company,
including gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
target to avoid a single gender Board has been met. The
Board is now made up of individual Directors who each
bring with them unique knowledge and experience in
the industrial, financial, legal and information technology
sectors. The Company shall continue to maintain its
Board diversity and, when there is any vacancy to fill,
to promote the specific objective of gender and age
diversity without compromising the quality of the Board.

The Company is dedicated to develop gender equality
as a part of the organization culture across different
divisions of the entire Group. As at 31 December
2023, the workforce (including senior management) of
the Group was composed of 44.5% male and 55.5%
female.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 91



92

TEERBRES
Corporate Governance Report

e Py T

ARBBANEINRTEEER  URER
RAMeg RACKEBEEMAE ML

ARRERMBEBE NINLEFTSHE
CEEARTEZBE BRE(EARER)
TEARAZEREABRLER AR
HERMEF 2ER BRNESNSIMNE
BEZEIRFEEXRER YEEARQ
REBTAREMEERENEZBERRK
R

RBEE-_E_=F+_A=+t—HILEHFE
N BEFEEYHARACEEAZBHER
BRETFEERM-

RAFERTZUREFTEEHT WX
HAEE AREETERAB - EEN%FE
BmIBBEERWMT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating, review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 the Board
has conducted an annual review of the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company.

Amongst the four Board meetings held during the year,
two were related to matters concerning corporate
governance functions. The attendance of the Directors
at these meetings was as follows:

=
Attendance
BITESE Executive Directors

EREKESE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 2/2

(FEFITHAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
FEHzLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
BRF 1+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
Az oK B 5 & Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
R & R ST A& Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 2/2

BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREBF T Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2
HEmIE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
BEXEBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
BEERE Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley 2/2

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification, analysis,
evaluation and management of risks on an ongoing
basis. Each department under the Group is required
to own and manage its own risks. A number of
management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming
its own view on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL (continued)

INTERNAL

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2023 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

The Company is committed to achieving and
maintaining the highest standards of openness, probity
and accountability. Complementary with the Anti-
Corruption Policy of the Company, the Whistleblowing
Policy has been adopted to govern and deal with fairly
and properly concerns raised by our employees and
business partners about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice regarding financial reporting, internal
controls or other matters related to the Group. The
existing Whistleblowing Policy of the Company does
not accept anonymous reporting because the Company
believes it will be difficult to follow up and obtain
information for an effective investigation. Also, based
on experience in the Company’s factories, the Company
would expect an abundance of anonymous reporting
if anonymous reporting was to be accepted and this
would unduly burden the Company’s management
resources. Nevertheless, the Company will make every
effort to treat all reporting in a strictly confidential
manner. All communications between the investigator
and the whistleblowers are strictly protected to ensure
that no reprisal or blame would be directed against the
whistleblowers. The identity of the whistleblower will
not be disclosed without his/her consent, unless the
Company is legally obliged to reveal the whistleblower’s
identity and other information to any government
authorities.



BREEEES
BREBZEEM-ANTERMER:

EITESzL (AR ER Aafﬁ)
BRTE#EB T RAEKIBEL A -

EEZEGZIEREEREREAS

IE’J%%‘;H e EAE R %?ttﬂ 2 R M
H%W,u\fbxﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁiﬁl iR I

A 1 L B EE/%.;LE’JWAI )Siﬁvtﬂ[ﬂ 2 18 64
EERNEFSRMHER

REBEE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—HL1LHF
B -EEEEZESCERREKREEESR:
%ﬁﬂ R ERE ERERENASEZ

BEBE: SwmEZRRZEABRESE &

= '.—Q‘Aﬁ

Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee),
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the risk
management systems; and advising the Board on risk-
related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Risk
Management Committee overseen the risk management
framework; assessed materiality of risks; monitored
and updated the Group’s risk policies; discussed risk

% uT}_L BMEERRBRETEBER L EM- reports on key risks; and reviewed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management system.
EREEZEEN T - =F BH8 1T The Risk Management Committee held twelve meetings
ToreH - AREELZESZENZS in 2023. The attendance of the Risk Management
FEIOEERNT: Committee members at these meetings was as follows:
=
Attendance
BITESE Executive Directors
Bt (EE) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 12/12
BRFEE L+ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 11/12
A& i JIB 4 A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 12/12
B 5 - Note:

AEERBTRAETAHFELAZARERZES

P
= A% °

Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management
Committee meetings above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group; discussed the auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including
review of the 2022 final results and 2023 interim
results of the Group; reviewed the external auditor’s
engagement letter; recommended the re-appointment
of the external auditor; and reviewed the accounting,
financial reporting and internal audit functions and their
staffs.

The Audit Committee met separately with the external
auditors and held two meetings in 2023. The attendance
of the Audit Committee members at these meetings was
as follows:

=
Attendance

BUKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PREEL (FH) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
BRAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
EXRERAE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND AUDITOR
RELATED MATTERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

WEE (BT
Amount (HK$)

ZER® Audit services 3,088,000
HEZE R Non-audit services
—BENEHAER - Hong Kong profits tax compliance 175,000
—HRTEENEHA — transfer pricing tax consultation 120,000
— I BT AR - Singapore tax consultation 66,000
FEk| Total 3,449,000

EERRBAAMBRR 2EML

EHAEERZEMERAEBLLE MR
RZERFHEHAARFHRFI04Z111E 2
REER GIEERANE

R R i

RERERREZLEN ERREXE L
BEHERBUNEE HAERZESRE
k2

AN BRZEUNTIEFRE ZFREFX
HRARB 2 ARAE — AW N\—FBR
ZERBLENBRIERZNRA -

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 104 to 111 of this Annual Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue.

In addition, shareholders are protected by the following
procedures as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”)

1.

One or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (1/10) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company on one vote per share basis, shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board of Directors or Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, to require a SGM
to be called by the Board of Directors for the
transaction of any business or resolution specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
(in the form as may be determined by the Board
in accordance with Bye-law 67 of the Company)
within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of
the SGM, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of those shareholders.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board of Directors to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. If within twenty-one (21) days of
the deposit of such requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

4.

On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be
convened as requested.

Procedures for shareholder(s) to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
(“AGM”) every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM,;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by
the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International
Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, not less than
six (6) weeks before the AGM in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the general meeting
in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
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person for election as director (continued)

4.

If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of the
Company (i) to include the resolution in the agenda
for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement
for the general meeting, provided that the
shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board
of Directors sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by
the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or
the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

A separate document containing the procedures for
a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board of Directors by shareholder(s)

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that
provide for a procedure by which shareholder(s) may
put forward an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the
Company. Shareholder(s) may, of course, at any time
send their enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors
of the Company via one of the following channels:

17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company
Secretary or Chairman of the Board)

Mailing Address:

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy of the
Company aims at promoting effective communication
with the shareholders and other stakeholders,
encouraging shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and enabling shareholders to exercise
their rights as shareholders effectively. The Company
communicates with the shareholders mainly in the
following ways: (i) corporate communications of
the Company (including, but not limited to, annual
reports, interim reports, notice of meetings, circulars
and announcements) to be published in a timely and
consistent manner as required by the Listing Rules; (ii)
information and documents of the Company posted on
the Company’s website; (iii) annual general meetings and
other general meetings of the Company which serve as
the primary forum for communication by the Company
with its shareholders; (iv) shareholders’ enquiries may
be sent to the Company or the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong; and (v) other investor relations
communication platforms, if appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION
POLICY (continued)

In support of environmental protection and pursuant
to the Listing Rules, shareholders are recommended
to read the Company’s corporate communications
electronically on the website of the Company or the
Stock Exchange. A shareholder who wishes to receive
printed copies of corporate communications may send
a written request to the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and the Company will send corporate
communications to the shareholder in printed form,
free of charge. Shareholders are able to change their
preference for the means of receipt from time to time.
Also, shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at the meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings. Chairman of the
Board and other Board members, chairmen of board
committees or their delegates, and the external auditor
shall attend annual general meetings to address and
answer any questions from the shareholders. Any
concerns and views of the shareholders will be taken
into consideration by the Board when formulating the
business strategies of the Company. The Board has
reviewed the implementation of the Policy during the
year and considered the Policy effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting held by the Company
on 1 June 2023, a special resolution was passed to
approve and adopt the amended and restated Bye-laws
of the Company (the “New Bye-laws”) in substitution for
the then existing Bye-laws to implement amendments in
order: (i) to conform to the core shareholders protection
standards set out in Appendix A1 (formerly known
as Appendix 3) of the Listing Rules, which came into
effect on 1 January 2022; (ii) to provide flexibility for the
Company to hold hybrid or electronic general meetings
and provide for provisions regulating the conduct and
proceedings of such general meetings; (iii) to bring
the then existing Bye-laws in line with the relevant
requirements and practices of the applicable laws of
Bermuda; and (iv) to make some other housekeeping
amendments. Details were set out in the circular issued
by the Company on 26 April 2023.

The New Bye-laws of the Company is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 03



104

B AR S

Independent Auditor’s Report

R
pwec
HEIRKBBEEEERATRR
(REFZFME T8 ER L A])
2R
BEMEEFHRE

FTERAEBEEER AT (LTHEBIEA
AMENBAR (L THEBIEEE])
DIE N EI12E250BE NG EHRE

B

e RIT-_=F+_-_A=1t-HBHHEAE

RIS K

s HBERALFEMNGEANEEK:

s HERALFEMNGRAEEZEWRARXK:

s KAWBHmAWE BREEANEHRK

REBMEMEERES -

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

B RR KB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
112 to 259, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023;

° the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

By KA
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
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B KiE
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to
estimated provision for inventory.

BREER
Key Audit Matter

FERERT
Estimated provision for inventory
BRI A BB RAN H @ RHT 2 -

Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Group held inventory of HK$372 million as at 31 December 2023. It
consistently applies a specific provisioning methodology for slow moving

inventory based on products life cycle and inventory ageing.
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We focused on auditing this area because the estimation of provision
is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty and its financial
significancy. The inherent risk in relation to the inventory provision is
considered significant due to significant judgements involved in identifying
the inventories associated with risk of obsolescence and slow moving and
evaluating the possible utilisation of the aged raw materials by making
reference to products life cycle.

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

AMNEANNEEBREHER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control and
assessment process of inventory provision estimation process and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as subjectivity and
complexity and changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.
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We examined the basis of the methodology with respect to inventory provisions
and evaluated, amongst others, the outcome of management’s estimations in prior
years, analysis and assessment made by management with respect to slow moving
and obsolete inventory to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process. We also evaluated, on a sample basis, the assumptions and estimates
applied by management to determine the possible utilisation of aged raw materials
by making reference to the products life cycle without contradictory evidence
noted.

AFERRGEELFRRASHEMANFERENERL TERA_Z
TRt Rt HNRERRREREEENER BN EN A ER G-
We evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
the inventory used in the calculation. We performed a recalculation of the inventory
provision using the ageing profile of the inventory as at 31 December 2023 and the
products life cycle determined by management.
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B KiE
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.



_E
pwc

B R B RSN BERREAEN

BfE (&)

BMERESZZESRIBH AL
ENAERBIMEMNHEREREREZSR
WEREMFBBEAEREMEARETE
BMBLENMBRERMEMER UK
EEANBRT  BUAERYBIIEESE
BB 1T B SRR A [ 88 45 e

HHEBEZZEGEBNERSD RMEE
MLEEHARGEEMBHRERRNETRR
EZ - AMBEKEREFER -RMALERX
AN E R AR ELER BRIPDERER
TAHLHABRBEELEER KEBRKFER
MERT MREEBRBERMRETE
BREHENNBERRBEBELNAR
Ma BRFIRETNEERSPBBZER-

HAXRBYZBEMRENBEAEEARA
IR

BORKESFMEBAR
ey

B —E-WNF=A=-+—"H

BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

Bk KB

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_F_=ZF+_-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—E-= —F--
2023 2022
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Yz Revenue 5 3,185,668 3,466,674
H At Y A Other income 6 14,731 12,333
BRMRERMTE Z# Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress 38,089 43,859
B A 2 R R KO8 #E G Raw materials and consumables used (2,359,874) (2,628,835)
EE @A Employee benefit expenses 7 (409,464) (457,111)
e Depreciation 8 (65,558) (71,931)
Hhga sz Other operating expenses 8 (170,273) (170,206)
Hih (BB, s F58 Other (losses)/gains — net 9 (5,098) 136,764
KEMERARBEED Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 (12,062) (80,148)
BEERWEGE ZMUREE  Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties 23 (2,208) (9,800)
FEWE 5 R 2 R EE 1B Reversal of/(provision for) impairment
# o, (BE) losses on trade receivables 24 1,143 (368)
BN Operating profit 215,094 241,231
& WA Finance income 11 25,686 19,317
BhE A AR Finance costs 11 (90,127) (57,655)
FEAG B & A RIS 18 Share of loss of an associate - (4,170)
JEEAEEFE, (E18) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 18 49,462 (44,073)
BR BT 15 B4 AU 7 B Profit before income tax 200,115 154,650
PRSHR X Income tax expense 12 (47,389) (42,214)
BRAT 15 B & 7 Profit after income tax 152,726 112,436
AQBEE AEGERE Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 152,726 112,436
AANREEAEN Earnings per share attributable
FESRER to owners of the Company
during the year
& ¥0.32 T B #0.237T
HAR Basic 14 HK$0.32 HK$0.23
& #0.32T PE1£0.237T
g Diluted 14 HK$0.32 HK$0.23
bR AW R EEBEHI M E—HFBIE - The above consolidated income statement should be

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2E-_F_=ZF+_-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—E-=F T _F
2023 2022
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FEFE Profit for the year 152,726 112,436
Eﬂi’.%ﬁlﬂlk : Other comprehensive income:
A]BEEFT 7 E Items that may be reclassified to
i E Y z:*?Z EH - consolidated income statement:
ReEnsdHh—FE Cash flow hedge - fair value
AREE(BE), WS (losses)/gains for the year (5,017) 21,365
REeMEEH - HER Cash flow hedge - deferred
EIEFTSR income tax recognised 828 (3,525)
BEMmE Currency translation differences:
—AR&EHE - Group (24,909) (183,407)
N - Associate - (389)

HETEENPHE
GAKEEZ A

ltems that will not be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated
income statement:

HEZRAREERA Loss on disposal of financial assets
Hih2mEBAR at fair value through other
TRIEEZER comprehensive income (5,300) (458)
BAREEFTAEMETE Changes in fair value of financial
AR ©BEE assets at fair value through
NAEBEEEZD other comprehensive income 20 (21,267) 10,067
FEHMZMEEE 2B Other comprehensive loss
... fortheyearnetoftax (55,665) (156,347)
ENRBEEAEBLEEE Total comprehensive income/(loss)
2EBA (BIE)RE for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company 97,061 (43,911)

PR AE2mEURAKREEREN M —Ff The above consolidated statement of comprehensive
BiE o income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZFZ=4F+=H=+—H Asat31 December 2023

—E=-= —_E -
2023 2022
B &E BT T TS F T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
LERY IS Property, plant and equipment 15 211,689 251,882
wEME Investment properties 16 1,946,822 1,959,215
EREEE Right-of-use assets 17 98,072 119,677
AETENER Interests in joint ventures 18 2,071,517 2,058,112
BRARBEFAEMER Financial assets at fair value through
AR EBEE other comprehensive income 20 100,080 158,538
EAEFTISTHEE Deferred income tax assets 21 19,480 19,662
A& M E b R BR X Deposits and other receivables 25 24,578 18,843
PEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 27 11,324 21,435
SRHIE S Restricted cash 26 = 1,055
4,483,562 4,608,419
REBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 22 372,296 487,189
EERMETE Stock of completed properties 23 201,402 203,610
JEYE 5 BR X Trade receivables 24 808,589 1,071,437
ERFE -FTE R Prepayments, deposits and
H th & W AR R other receivables 25 94,613 90,169
BARBETFTAREMEE Financial assets at fair value through
AR BEE other comprehensive income 20 58 78
B H AT U =l P AS A Current income tax recoverable 1,688 1,356
ZREIR & Restricted cash 26 121,164 124,702
REIRITIER Short-term bank deposits 26 284,844 546,736
BeRREeEED Cash and cash equivalents 26 942,040 544,537
2,826,694 3,069,814
REE Total assets 7,310,256 7,678,233

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-FE-—=F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2023

—E-= —E2-=
2023 2022
B 5 BETT BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
= EQUITY
BENEKQATEBAZER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
fi& A Share capital 31 47,848 47,848
HAth (18 Other reserves 32 464,843 519,291
REBETF Retained earnings 32
— ¥k i 2 - Proposed dividend 14,355 21,533
—HAh - Others 3,947,221 3,824,421
MRS Total equity 4,474,267 4,413,093
aE LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
PTHEeRITA Derivative financial instruments 27 3,519 8,613
FEET & N H b B BR 3R Accruals and other payables 29 6,153 -
HEaE Lease liabilities 17 1,492 19,419
BEFSHRAR Deferred income tax liabilities 21 83,250 81,070
B Borrowings 30 935,840 1,070,294
1,030,254 1,179,396
REBEE Current liabilities
ERTE SRR Trade payables 28 545,647 710,517
FERT & A R H b BT BRK Accruals and other payables 29 219,379 229,258
aEHaE Contract liabilities 5 136,502 131,574
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 14,676 18,914
EHMGEHEE Current income tax liabilities 34,693 42,807
B Borrowings 30 854,838 952,674
N 1,805,735 2,085,744
wmems’ Total liabilites = 2835989 3,265,140
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 7,310,256 7,678,233

GEVBHRRERN _ZE-_WE=ZA-+—"H
EEEg aRRETISE YAHTIES

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

REEE: 22 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:
T BFK FEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FEFTHAEZ EZE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director

ot gR A B 5K O 3K FE B BE B BN 5 — BF

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_F_=ZF+_-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

ARRHBAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
R B s B Hin B @t
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total

(BaE31)  (BaE32)  (BaEs2)
(Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 32)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

R-ZFE-_—_%—A—H As at 1 January 2022 47,848 153,025 4,277,664 4,478,537
ZHEIA Comprehensive income
FREMHE Profit for the year - - 112,436 112,436
Hip2mEUA Other comprehensive income
HERARBET AEMEE Loss on disposal of financial assets

WARSREE 2 BB at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - (458) (458)

BRARBEFFAEMEEUWAR Changes in fair value of financial assets

PREEANBEE at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - 10,067 10,067

EEBmEEE Currency translation differences - - (183,796) (183,796)
ReREaHH—FE Cash flow hedge - fair value gains

N BERE for the year - - 21,365 21,365
ReRnEHHR-—CHER Cash flow hedge - deferred income

EIEFTIS L tax recognised - - (3,525) (8,525)
Ht2HEBRA| Total other comprehensive loss S - (156,347) _ (156,347)
S HEHEEES Total comprehensive loss - - (43,911) (43,911)
HEBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENAARHEEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (21,533) (21,533)
BRBENZIXZBE Total transactions with owners S - [21583)  (21,533)
RZZFE-_—_F+=_HA=+—H Asat 31 December 2022 47,848 153,025 4,212,220 4,413,093
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEr—F -+ =-HA=+—HIFF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

NGE 2PN S

Attributable to owners of the Company

A& R EE Hittf e
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total
(F=E31) (FiEE32) (HE32)
(Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 32)
BETT BETRT BET T BETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

3
-1

R-ZEBE-_=F—H—H As at 1 January 2023 47,848 153,025 4,212,220 4,413,093
ZHEIA Comprehensive income
FREMHE Profit for the year - - 152,726 152,726
Hip2mEUA Other comprehensive income
HERARBET AEMEE Loss on disposal of financial assets
WARSREE 2 BB at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - (5,300) (5,300)
BRARBEFFAEMEEUWAR Changes in fair value of financial assets
PREEANBEE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - (21,267) (21,267)
HEEHmEESR Currency translation differences - - (24,909) (24,909)
ReREaHH—FE Cash flow hedge - fair value losses
AR BEEE for the year - - (5,017) (5,017)
fﬁ%msz h— B R Cash flow hedge - deferred income
EIEFTIS L tax recognised - - 828 828
AthZEERER Total other comprehensive loss - - (55665  (55,665)
2HWALLE Total comprehensive income - - 97,061 97,061
HBEBAZRS Transactions with owners
ENARARHEAZRKRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (35,887) (35,887)
BEBAZXZRE Total ransactions with owners - - (5881  (365887)
R-ZZB-=%+=-HA=+—H Asat31 December 2023 47,848 153,025 4,273,394 4,474,267
Faisr AR EERELEFBEMN M s —6f The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
BsE o should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 1 7
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Consolldated Cash Flow Statement

HE_F_=ZF+_-HA=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—E-=E —T-CF
2023 2022
i & BETT BETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EETHMBRLRE Cash flows from operating activities
EEELNRSTE Net cash generated from operations 34(a) 485,217 123,458
ENBEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (6,875) (3,296)
BREIR Overseas tax paid (45,352) (30,779)
ERFE Interest paid (90,127) (57,655)
EETHELENRESTH Net cash generated from operating activities 342,863 31,728
REZBFRBHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BAME BRERSE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20,816) (92,756)
HENE BERZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
TS 508 plant and equipment 34(b) 6,324 884
B YR 2 Dividend received 1,827 3,819
BRAREEFALGEZEKA Additional investment in financial assets at
MEREERIRE fair value through other comprehensive income - (830)
BEAnBEFAEMZEKA Proceeds from investment in financial assets at
NERMEEREMGTE fair value through other comprehensive income 31,911 2,615
RERTFHRAD Decrease in short-term bank deposits 34(c) 256,218 284,707
TREBEEL /(M) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 34(c) 2,945 (1,075)
AELEER Repayment from joint ventures 36,057 39,270
E YA S Interest received 25,686 19,317
RETBHREHNELTE Net cash generated from investing activities 340,152 255,951
METHFERERE Cash flows from financing activities
ERRBRITER (Decrease)/increase in trust receipt bank
(RD)/Em- 58 loans - net (104,773) 117,758
MERITER New bank loans 792,000 487,000
BERTER Repayment of bank loans (919,517) (657,508)
TRAEMK Payment of lease payments 34(c) (16,136) (21,322)
BB A Dividends paid (35,887) (21,533)
BMETBHRAANEETFE Net cash used in financing activities (284,313) (95,605)
ReRBSESENZEMTE Net increases in cash and cash equivalents 398,702 192,074
ENzBRERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 544,537 400,818
ERBEES Currency translation differences (1,199) (48,355)
FRZBERESEEN Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 26 942,040 544,537

it EaBE e REREEBEMN M —F The above consolidated cash flow statement should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REH

ITREREEERQA ([ARA]) R
HE QA (il f$’§lj)1%ﬁé$
M 2E HERDHEFEM:
SE/ESSE

RARTTRBRETMK L 2 B
REREAAR -FMMHEEREE
& 2 1 B 95 Bl i 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda X & & /188 B ¥& & XX 110857
HMEBIRKEITE

ARBZBNEBZRELBHER BN
BRAREREM -

BRRBEAIN GEMBRRIABEE
27 HREVBBRRER T _MF
At HAEEESHETIE-

EIEELURAEAZERK
HUAJREXREFTHRER
M=

2HNREFEAMBBRRARA ZEKR
REA P EEB NG BEREN T3 - )
SHEEPIN ZFEBRREXNABE 2 F
EERER-

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property holding.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, No0.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED

The material and other potentially material
accounting policies applied in the presentation of
these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 1 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

INFORMATION APPLIED

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong, and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCQO")
Cap. 622.

The preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on historical cost
basis, as modified by revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, derivative
financial instruments and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Historical cost convention (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(a) New and amended standards
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the
following new and amended
standards for its annua
reporting period commencing on
1 January 2023:

Standards Subject of amendment

Amendments to Disclosure of
HKAST and Accounting
HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform
HKAS 12 - Pillar Two Model
Rules
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
HKFRS 17 Initial Application
of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9
- Comparative
Information

Amendments to Amendments to
HKFRS 17 HKFRS 17

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 21
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Historical cost convention (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)  New and amended standards
adopted by the Group (continued)

The new and amended
standards listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 E2HNEEUERMERAZEAR 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
HaggE RS HEKXER SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)
mBEEXE (F) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EBERAES () (b) Historical cost convention (continued)
QN B HREKREERTEE 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
(%) disclosures (continued)
(b) BRI ANEET (b) Amended standards and

ERN R 2 FE interpretation not yet adopted
& Tt EANEET Certain amendments to
iR &2 R EMmE accounting standards and
WHER-FT_=F interpretation have been
+ZA=+—Hz published that are not
R HAR SR BB TT mandatory for 31 December
BREXREERR 2023 reporting period and have
Bz FIEET IR not been early adopted by the
TEE T ERE R Group. These amendments
RRMEHRBHE are not expected to have a
BRAERBRR material impact on the entity in
SEETMWERKR the current or future reporting
A periods and on foreseeable

future transactions:
BUTHARz%

Z8 (PHES: Btz EEHREN

Effective for
annual periods

Standards Subject of amendment beginning on or after

ERGHERFIR 2B BEPERRDIGERD —E-mE-A-H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024

ERGHERFIR 2B MHEZHENERD AR —E-mE-A-H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024

ERMBRSERF16% 2EETR EREOTHEERE —E-mE-A-H

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024

ERREFST (KEF]) BHEREOII B - ERANEEERERERNERNNBRETNDE “Z-mE-fA-H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower 1 January 2024

of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

ERGHENRTRREBYHK HEBRELH “E-mE-A-H

REEHETR 2B

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024

BB RAENR 2 ETR HmZ AR ZEZRF-A-H

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

ERMBREEREI0HK REZEBHBENAIAERRLHZEEHEI LR fE

E u“‘—EH”%QSfZ1 nﬂﬂi
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined

and HKAS 28

Associate or Joint Venture
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Historical cost convention (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)  Amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted
(continued)

The Group will adopt the
above amended standards
and interpretation when they
become effective. The Directors
of the Company have performed
preliminary assessment and do
not anticipate any significant
impact on the Group’s
financial position and results
of operations upon adopting
these amended standards and
interpretation.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
2.2.1 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December 20283.
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EIHEEDLREMEAZERKR 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
Htt TR EXREFHEKELR SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)
22 EREFHERE (&) 2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
221 =& () 2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(@ MIEBRFA (a) Subsidiaries

MEBARIEMEAEE Subsidiaries are all entities (including
HHABZHENELE structured entities) over which
(BREEEMEETE) - the Group has control. The Group
*‘”$Ell7%’§éﬁiﬁxf£ controls an entity when the Group is
BE i A HE ] # Bl e & exposed to, or has rights to, variable
ISAX%E—J """"" A (o] R A returns from its involvement with the
moWARNBEBRETR entity and has the ability to affect
Exaﬁfxﬁibﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%’i“ those returns through its power to
It & [B] R B $§"§@Eﬂ direct the activities of the entity.
THIZE R -WE A A Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
% %U%L%Eﬁ$%l from the date on which control is
Z BREHEEZEEA transferred to the Group. They are
UhlEE /N R e %Wﬁ”ﬂ: deconsolidated from the date that

< BR{ZILERE AR control ceases.
AEEEBEHERARK The acquisition method of accounting
BaihEARKe. is used to account for business

combinations by the Group.

ﬂF’ﬁZ?&% HEER R Intercompany transactions, balances
NAIBAR G2 KE and unrealised gains on transactions
IEJ%Z $HE£$¢J o K& between group companies are
WEBETGHEE BRI eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
EAQ%TET%%%?@/T’\FE eliminated unless the transaction
EREEDRE- MB provides evidence of an impairment
NFIZBERIRERA of the transferred asset. Accounting
FERELHARE  BR policies of subsidiaries have been
HAEERAZ G changed where necessary to ensure
K—He consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(b) Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, investments in
joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor,
rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using
the equity method, after initially
being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.
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EHNEELUERFAHFEHAZEARE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
Htt TR EXREFHEKELR SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)
22 EREFHERE (&) 2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
221 =& () 2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) BmEFE (c) Equity accounting

BEEDRGE ’RE Under the equity method of
TR A R E accounting, the investments are
ISR B AR GR G W initially recognised at cost and
RERAREE G adjusted thereafter to recognise
R ETEE & the Group’s share of the post-
RE M2 E U AR acquisition profits or losses of the
SEELMERETNE investee in consolidated income
fthEEKRAZEE 21K statement, and the Group’s share of
FEWEERRIREE movements in other comprehensive
PERERITBIRER income of the investee in other
HE®ER - comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associate
and joint ventures are recognised as
a reduction in the carrying amount of

the investment.
EAEEEGEERER When the Group’s share of losses
ABRKRENEBEESR in an equity-accounted investment
HHHERZERBNE equals or exceeds its interest in the
= (BEEAEMER entity, including any other unsecured
A RAEIE R KIE) - Al long-term receivables, the Group
AEBTSHERE—F does not recognise further losses,
BB BRIFEBELER unless it has incurred obligations
FIREEMEBED or made payments on behalf of the

E other entity.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Equity accounting (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions
between the Group and its associate
and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-
accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the
policy described in Note 2.2.6.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the
Company.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests
(continued)

When the Group ceases to
consolidate or equity account for
an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to
consolidated income statement or
transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(d Changes in ownership interests
(continued)

If the ownership interest in a
joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified to consolidated income
statement where appropriate.

2.2.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The Group’s
senior executive management, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, is considered as the CODM
that makes strategic decisions.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement,
except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.
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EIHEEDLREMEAZERKR 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
Htt TR EXREFHEKELR SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)
22 EREFHERE (&) 2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

223 HHEBE (&) 2.2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)
b) RHREEH (E) (b) Transactions and balances (continued)
FTEERBE BEZ All foreign exchange gains and losses
ZEHEEBMRe KB including those relate to borrowings
CEEVMEBEN BT and cash and cash equivalents are
REWERANTEM presented in the consolidated income
B s — 58] F statement within ‘other losses/gains

25 - net’.
DERBRARBETA Changes in the fair value of monetary
BEazemEELE/M securities denominated in foreign
BE(EETEE/mT currency classified as financial assets
B) BAnEBETA and financial liabilities (including
HMrEWANEEE derivative financial instruments)
EZUINEFTEEEE at fair value through profit or loss
HZAnBEES 3t and financial assets at fair value
BHE KN B E through other comprehensive income
SEREEEMEEHME are analysed between translation
FIEEHMEEZEHETY differences resulting from changes
T o 8 35 K 2N 2 B) AH 8 in the amortised cost of the security,
MEEENGRERER and other changes in the carrying
R -MEBRARE amount of the security. Translation
Bt A\BmZ2/mEE differences related to changes in the
NIER BEG AEAM amortised cost are recognised in
FHBAZEREEZ consolidated income statement, and
AR (B A th & B Al 5 7l other changes in the carrying amount
RiralmrEEME are recognised in consolidated
HEURAFER ° income statement and other

comprehensive income for financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
respectively.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as financial assets
and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss and
equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in
consolidated income statement as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such
as equities classified as financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are included
in other comprehensive income.
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SHNEEDURFAERAZEAE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
HMagE XSt HEEE SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE(F) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

22 BEAGHBEBE (&)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

223 S E (4E) 2.2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) &KBEETAA (c) Group companies

AEBBETHREDEE
KEREFEBTRAE
B(ZTEEMEESR
BEBREERERZE

The results and financial position
of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that

B ) 2 FE RGN have a functional currency different

BUATHRABERER from the presentation currency are

Bk translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

() BHBAKRAKFZE () assets and liabilities for each
JIEERBE & statement of financial position
WwE BB W HE presented are translated at the
RME closing rate at the date of that

report;

iy BRBIEKIBAR (i) income and expenses for each
SRR FHEERR income statement are translated

o HEY
FREXZHEHB

at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a

TEXZBEMRZ reasonable approximation of the
BN RINTE cumulative effect of the rates
BEIER T WA K prevailing on the transaction
SRR S B Bk dates, in which case income and
=53 expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and
(i) FTELEZIPER = (i) all resulting exchange
HERREME differences are recognised in
EHA o other comprehensive income.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(©

Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the
translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in
the consolidated income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories

and offices. All property,

plant and

equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 6 to 40 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5to 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Construction in progress represents
property, plant and equipment under
construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less impairment losses, if
any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and available for their
intended use. On completion, the relevant
assets are transferred to property, plant
and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.2.6).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.5 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally
comprising leasehold land and buildings,
are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the companies in the
Group.

Investment properties comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is
met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.

Investment properties are measured
initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by
external valuers at least annually. Fair
value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is
not available, the external valuers use
alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.5 Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment, and its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and
equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed,
any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment under HKAS 16.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

226 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 41



142

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Z2HNEEURARAZEARR
HEwRgEEAREATBRRER
ME (&)

22 BEAGHBEBE (&)

227 RERHMEMEE

(1)

DHR
AEBRATFERR
HemEBEEETOR:

o HENAREE
B (AHE B A
Hip 2 ERA S
BUEE) R

o  IMEEHARAGE-

A EMARAEBE
BeRMAELEBH
KRR S RE N AL
e
HRIAD R BETEZ
AE RABETAG
AR R 2 E R
A e BT 3 IEH 1R 5
THFTEBEME -
ELA6 BRI AN B 7 )
R R T fEi R A
i35 2 S T o 218
BT RED S EEE
AR RERA -

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement
categories:

e those to be measured
subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive
income, or through consolidated
income statement), and

° those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be
recorded in consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
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SHNEEUEFERAZEAXE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
EMmWgEEREHTHEEER SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED

(continued)
22 EABHBEMYE (&) 2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

22 REREMEREE (F) 2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

() WREELEER (i)  Recognition and derecognition
TREELEREERR Regular way purchases and sales
REBBR—XHAIE of financial assets are recognised
REEARBBEASLE on trade-date, the date on which
ZEEZH-BEESRE the Group commits to purchase or
EEEPREGREZHE sell the asset. Financial assets are
ME P HsEE B derecognised when the rights to
SECERHEBERE B receive cash flows from the financial
A EB o [ i A0 (2 o 83 5 assets have expired or have been
FAlemEEGRIE transferred and the Group has
W o transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership.

(i) &= (i) Measurement
RYEHERE  AEE At initial recognition, the Group
FEEMEE (HEeR measures a financial asset at its fair
BEWIFZAREER value plus, in the case of a financial
A=) AA R EBEN asset not at fair value through profit
FAEERBRWEZ or loss, transaction costs that are
HeMEEZRSE directly attributable to the acquisition
R-BirrnBEA of the financial asset. Transaction
BanveMEEMRBE costs of financial assets carried at
RHERNEFEEREE fair value through profit or loss are
S expensed in consolidated income
statement.
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2 2EEUERMKEAZEARKR 2 BASIS OF
HAREXRSFTHRRER
BE (&) POTENTIALLY
POLICIES

(continued)

22 EREFHERE (&)

(continued)

22T RERHMEMEE (#)

PREPARATION AND

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(i) F=(&) (ifi)
EETA
BB TR ZEEFTER
ARAEEEERZEE

ZEBRANNZEE
ZIREREFE-

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow

characteristics of the asset.
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Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these
financial assets is included
in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised
directly in consolidated income
statement and presented
in other losses/gains — net,
together with foreign exchange
gains and losses.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)  Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

o Fair value through other
comprehensive income: Assets
that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except
for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are
recognised in consolidated
income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in
other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to
consolidated income statement
and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented
in other losses/gains — net
and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line
item in consolidated income
statement.
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INFORMATION APPLIED
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2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss:
Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in consolidated
income statement within “other
(losses)/gains — net” in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there
is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to
consolidated income statement
following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be
recognised in consolidated income
statement as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in other losses/
gains - net in the consolidated
income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from

25 e other changes in fair value.
(iv) BB (iv) Impairment
HRABEK AR 2 EH The Group assesses on a forward
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looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Impairment losses are
presented in consolidated income
statement. For trade receivables,
the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.8 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value
depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
The Group designates certain derivatives:

° hedges of a particular risk associated
with the cash flows of recognised
assets and liabilities and highly
probable forecast transactions (cash
flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception
of the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedge items, as well
as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception
and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue
to be highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.8 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

The fair values of various derivative
financial instruments used for hedging
purposes are disclosed in Note 27.
Movements in the hedging reserve in
shareholders’ equity are shown in Note
32. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current
asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than
twelve months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is less than
twelve months. Trading derivatives are
classified as a current asset or liability.

()  Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting

The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges is recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in equity.
The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in consolidated income
statement within ‘other losses/gains
- net’.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 49



150

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EIEELURAEAZERRK
HMAgEEAETFBEREER
ME (&)

22 EXSFHBEBE (&)

228 FTE T EREHIEE (&)

) HEERXAYRE
HEZBRERESHH
(&)

B BET BN hE
EE-Z -3 -E: I n I ES
DEWMT

o BRI EIHF
B ) R 5 5KA A
7 HE A E I am S S
18 B Y AR KA
BRX—RFAR
5 P B ISR

R T BEHmSE
SRS R T A
THEFEEPETRE
ROZER - B & B 7E M
BB TR 2T W=k
EEDATEZPR
B UITgEREAR I &
BEHZRERERPER
BERER - NFEAR 5B
T REMEST BB
W EWME R ET N S
BellREHSEELR
AR

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.8 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)

Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting (continued)

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, as
follows:

e The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of the interest
rate swaps hedging variable
rate borrowings is recognised
in profit or loss within finance
cost at the same time as the
interest expense on the hedged
borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires
or is sold or terminated, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at
that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised
in consolidated income statement.
When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately
reclassified to consolidated income
statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.8 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)  The derivative instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other
losses/gains — net’.

2.29 Inventories and stock of completed
properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated
at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by apportionment of
the total land and development costs
attributable to the completed properties.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due
from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that
is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 24
for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b)(ii)(1) for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.11 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay
for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.13 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised
in consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.2.14 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for
the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2214Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2214Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2214Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2214Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

2.2.15 Employee benefits
(@) Pension obligations

Group companies participate in
general defined contribution pension
schemes. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and
prior periods.
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.15 Employee benefits (continued)

(@)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrued to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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BE (&) POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

22 EABHBEMYE (&) 2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)
2015 EEBEA (48) 2.2.15 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) #XIEBRTE4EF (c) Termination benefits
RIERGEANEAREE Termination benefits are payable
RIEFERNEHAFTAR b when employment is terminated
EREEEEXBRE by the Group before the normal
EBUA L BRI S4B F retirement date, or whenever
B2 o N E 7 7] & an employee accepts voluntary
BA AR A0 T R RE R AR LE redundancy in exchange for these
AR 7% 1@ F1 - 4R 9% 5 40 &Y benefits. The Group recognises
ERGFE (EBEAT termination benefits when it is
BEIRIEIRBEENE demonstrably committed to either:
B ARE—EELY terminating the employment of
VAES B) B FEiE Bk i 1R 1 current employees according to
B 42 1 AR 75 48 F o 10 3R a detailed formal plan without
HEHREBBT=@EA possibility of withdrawal; or providing
FEM R AR EIRE termination benefits as a result of an
FE - offer made to encourage voluntary

redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted
to present value.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.15 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and
bonus plans due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which
will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.16 Provisions (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. When a
change in the probability of an outflow
occurs, so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 1 63



164

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Z2HNEEURARAZEARR
HEwRgEEAREATBRRER
ME (&)

22 EREFHERE (&)

2217 WRTER

(@)

\U]]R
ED

HE

e 2 70 E m B 158 T R TE
EESEAREEERP
KRR AERE XN
TEPFP BEFPA2ER
FAREHEEMIRE
NEBURIT S
TERPEMEMMNAR
BITEERER E M
PR & & E K H A R
?&ﬁﬁ—ir BN & E miE X

e EHE EBE
B

FEW R IR & 7 R A B
g - B 3R 2 H A {%
ATF SR B K - R

[ 3 (8 0 4 iR fF

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
(continued)

INFORMATION APPLIED

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.17 Revenue recognition

(a)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
control of the products is transferred
to the customers at a point in time,
being products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full
discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before
the payment is due.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.17 Revenue recognition (continued)
(@) Sales of goods (continued)

Payments received in advance that
are related to sales of goods not
yet delivered are recognised as
contract liabilities and deferred in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

(c) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised

when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.18 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.18 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a
lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase
option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under
reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the
liability.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.18 Leases (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing
rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts
with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the
lease, eg term, country, currency and
security.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.18 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

2.2.18 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life.

Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in consolidated
income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of twelve months
or less.

Lease income from operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognised
in consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included
in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on their nature.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies

2.3.1 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty.

2.3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts.

2.3.3 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (continued)

2.3.4 Financial guarantee contracts
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TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value
and subsequently at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of subsidiaries
or associate are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of
the Group.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL AND OTHER
POTENTIALLY MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES INFORMATION APPLIED
(continued)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (continued)

2.3.5 Government grants

Grants from the government are
recognised at their fair values where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the
purchase of property, plant and
equipment are initially included in liabilities
as deferred government grants and when
such property, plant and equipment
are built or purchased, the received
government grants are recognised in
consolidated income statement on a
systematic basis over the expected useful
lives of the related assets.

2.3.6 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
()  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
(“RMB”) and United States dollars
(“US$"). These currencies are not
the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries of the Group to which
these balances related. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments denominated in RMB
and USS$.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

miEE bk () (a) Market risk (continued)
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(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$ and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.

The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net
assets are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations on the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31 December 2023, for the
group companies with RMB as
their functional currency, if RMB
had weakened/strengthened by
5% (2022: 5%) against US$ with
all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$16,347,000 (2022:
HK$16,892,000) higher/lower (2022:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses (2022:
foreign exchange gains/losses) on
translation of US$-denominated trade
receivables and payables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2023, for the
group companies with HK$ as
their functional currency, if HK$
had weakened/strengthened by
5% (2022: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$134,000 (2022:
HK$157,000) lower/higher (2022:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains (2022
foreign exchange losses/gains) on
translation of RMB-denominated
trade receivables and payables and
cash and cash equivalents.

As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the US$, the Group management
considers that the relevant foreign
exchange risks are minimal.



3

BEBRERER (&)

31 BIERREZE (&)

(a) mEER (&)

e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) REREMNXER

AEBERFEEERA
BENXREH 7 EMM
WmAXER -RERE
) R [ i 15 T 55 ) R 2
BT ERNEN XS
MIAELEZRERE
Z R N B AR
BETBZRRETH
R REE 2 FBF =
ERS A= N R R S
MEFE WKEARE
BEEREeRERX
[\ g2 o

AEEERMNRIEHE
BHERSRENEME
e —RME AEHE
DN RIES SN b
Vg /RBRERAEEER
1Z[E TE F) & 5 XA IR
IR Z BEIE = -

(i

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest
rate risk is the risk that changes
in market interest rates will impact
cash flows arising from variable rate
financial instruments. The Group’s
interest bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group's
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest
rate swaps. Generally, the Group
raises borrowings at floating rates
and swaps them into fixed rates
that are lower than those available
if the Group borrowed at fixed rates
directly.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if interest
rate on bank borrowings had been
1% (2022: 1%) higher/lower with all
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$2,427,000 (2022: HK$4,367,000)
lower/higher (2022: lower/higher),
mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings, which are not hedged
with interest rate swap contracts.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers such as trade
receivables, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
deposits and other receivables. The credit
risk on cash and bank deposits is limited
because the Group mainly places the
deposits in banks with high credit rating
and management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these
banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EERE (&) (b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) REpER ()  Risk management
REBEERR K& To manage credit risk, the Group has
EZEMEBEERRK considered the underlying security
BEHFLH2RAES and the long-established business

MR- AEECHIFT K
KOBREEEGNE
HEEMIBEPHYAEER
E%mﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ
EhegEHTEERN
:ﬁ‘%w$%§@%
TEXRE HEBHARM
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(B =% 85%)
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ﬁ&ﬂ&wﬁ'wﬁﬁ
BZEEPHNEER

+ 3 B o

AEBEMBEREE
(BRZRHRE 2
RITHEFR B2 MRS
EEW RAAEER
)\ﬁ?@;ﬁﬂ&z)\ﬁﬁﬁrﬂ
BE Fl& MhEMER
RO ZIEERRKE
HFHELN ME
RREERBREEFENZ
WIEZEEETE

relationship with the counterparty.
The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on
credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require
collaterals from trade debtors. As at
31 December 2023, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that
the top five (2022: five) customers
account for 83% (2022: 85%) of
the Group’s total year end trade
receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in
respect of these customers is
minimal after considering the financial
position and past experience with
these customers.

The credit risk of the Group’s
other financial assets, which
comprise, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and deposits and
other receivables are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

(1) Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables
are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. Trade receivables
have been assessed based on
credit rating of the customers,
the repayment and default
histories of different customers
and on-going business
relationship with the relevant
customers. The loss rates
are further adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic
Product index of the countries
where the customers located to
be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjust the historical
loss rate based on expected
changes in these factors.
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(continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(1)
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Trade receivables (continued)

Loss allowance in respect of the
trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$2,325,000
(2022: HK$3,468,000) based
on an expected loss rate of
approximately 0.01% to 1.40%
(2022: 0.01% to 4.26%) as at 31
December 2023, primarily based
on individual assessment.

Trade receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of
recovery includes, amongst
other, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against
the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(1) Trade receivables (continued)

RZE_=ZFK The movement of loss allowance
T F+=H for trade receivables as at 31
=t+—H BKE December 2023 and 2022 are
SRR EEEE as follows:
SEIIT
—E-=E —E-CF
2023 2022
BETT BETL
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—RA—BEHTEERE Opening loss allowance at 1 January (3,468) (3,100)
BE/ (R BREE Reversal of/(provision for) loss allowance 1,143 (368)
RT-—B=t+—BNHRERERE Closing loss allowance at 31 December (2,325) (3,468)

fE W E 5 R BB
EEERGERE
7 #1,143,0007T
(ZE2EZ_F: &
WE SRR A
BEBEERE
#¥368,0007T ) &t
AR AWER -

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

Reversal of provision for
impairment losses on trade
receivables amounted to
HK$1,143,000 (2022: Provision
for impairment losses on trade
receivables of HK$368,000) is
included in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

iy EMEERE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets

(continued)
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(2)  Other financial assets at amortised

cost

Other financial assets at
amortised cost include
deposits and other receivables.
Management considers that the
credit risk of these balances has
not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial
position. The impairment
provision is determined based
on the twelve months expected
credit losses which was
immaterial.

While cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and restricted cash are
also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The
Directors aim to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its
compliance with lending covenants and
its relationship with its bankers to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The maturity analysis for other
bank borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.

HEA A
Maturity Analysis
15RT
BREXRE 122F 2E5% a5
Less than 1 year
or repayable Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
BETTL BETTL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Consolidated
RZFZZFTZA=+-H At 31 December 2022

ERESER Trade payables 710,517 - - 710,517
EirBRRAMERER Accruals and other payables 223,964 - - 223,964
HERR Lease liabilties 20,460 17,360 2,835 40,655
ERNERTER Trust receipt bank loan 448 471 - - 448 471

REFEREURRY Other bank borrowings subject to
EMHETER arepayment on demand clause 60,240 - - 60,240
EBRITER Other bank borrowings 513,102 620,524 530,023 1,663,649
1,976,754 637,884 532,858 3,147,496

RZBZ=%+-F=1+-H At 31 December 2023

BRESER Trade payables 545,647 - - 545,647
BHERARELEAER Accruals and other payables 219,379 - - 219,379
HEBE Lease liabilities 15,121 1,532 - 16,653
ERRERTER Trust receipt bank loan 343,911 - - 343,911

REEEREURRY Other bank borrowings subject to
ERBETER arepayment on demand clause 39,273 - - 39,273
EBITER Other bank borrowings 544,046 419,046 621,634 1,584,726
1,707,377 420,578 621,634 2,749,589
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3 HMKEBER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

32 EXEpER 3.2 Capital risk management
AN S @E’Jé{ik 2B RE®RA The Group’s objectives when managing capital
SERFELSE BEERBREIR are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
T/\@#E]U%Eﬁﬂ%ﬁ%”tXﬂﬁﬁ’ as a going concern in order to provide
lﬂﬂ%%&ﬁ?&a@ﬁzﬁﬂ%uﬁﬁ returns for shareholders and benefits for
N other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
REFAHABERERE ~EE In order to maintain or adjust the capital
AREERAEINTRENKRES structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
R MRREREIE A ?é‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬁ dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
HHEBEENREER- to shareholders, issue new shares or sell

assets to reduce debt.

BEHEMAEZE B NEENLNFE Consistent with others in the industry, the
ERRLEREREEERNELE- Group monitors capital on the basis of net
ZHEBF A BRI BRERRTE - gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
FREREEFRNRHEAGERRT debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
PR I 3R & - Lﬁﬂfﬁfﬂ_ KA K 3R calculated as total borrowings and lease
MR EEBWTE- liabilities less restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
—E-=F —_EF -
2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BER Total borrowings 1,790,678 2,022,968
HEBE Lease liabilities 16,168 38,333
1,806,846 2,061,301
ZRHIER ® Restricted cash 121,164 125,757
5 ERIRITIF R Short-term bank deposits 284,844 546,736
e kReEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 942,040 544,537
1,348,048 1,217,030
FIEE Net debt 458,798 844,271
B Total equity 4,474,267 4,413,093
FEEHEAEREE Net debt to total equity ratio 10% 19%
AEBR-_ZE-_=ZF+=A The Group’s net gearing ratio was 10% (2022:
“Tt+—HZZFEEBBLEER 19%) as at 31 December 2023. The decrease
10% (ZEZ_F:19%) o F & in net gearing ratio was due to gradual
EAGELEFRITTHREFEE repayments of total borrowings and lease

wERNHEBEBRME- liabilities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of the following financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

e Trade receivables

° Deposits and other receivables
° Restricted cash

o Short-term bank deposits

o Cash and cash equivalents

o Trade payables

o Accruals and other payables

° Bank borrowings

° Lease liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3 MBKERER (&) 3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s

assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2022.

AR Eol £ B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BB BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EE Assets
BAREEFAEMGZ2ABRA  Financial assets at fair value through
NEREE other comprehensive income 138,507 - 20,109 158,616
THESMIA Derivative financial instruments - 21,435 - 21,435
=L Liabilities
THEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 8,613 - 8,613

TRENAEBER _ZE_=F
+-A=+—"BERAABET=E

The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

ZEENBE- value at 31 December 2023.
1R EPE F3R k]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETR BETR BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Assets
BRAREEFAEMZABRA  Financial assets at fair value through
MEREE other comprehensive income 73,260 - 26,878 100,138
fTESBMIA Derivative financial instruments - 11,324 - 11,324
=L Liabilities
fTES@MTA Derivative financial instruments = 3,519 = 3,519

FA-FEIR F2M R B3R 2 E

I T o
FAEERDLELME-

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

There were no other changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

F1REWMIA

EERMZEEMSRIA
ZARBERBERSHOT
HGREY R MR RER A
ERTEHER S &HE-
e TESEE RERE
HEERBEES MZIH
ERMERREHIZA TR
BT 2mBER S BlZm
LR BERME - NEEHF
ERNESRMEENTISRER
ERERE-ZFITAGA
F1R -

F2F @M ITAE

WIHEERMSEENS R
TAE(BIIBINMTET RN
AREBENFERABERDE
F-ZEHEHRTDREFEH
Az A BEmiSE8E
WRAERDEKBERIIET
HEt - WTAAAREBEZE
B EEZELX2H Y AER
ZITRFAZE28R -

FRTESR T ABENX
mE E R EESERG
BERTDEE -ZFHERD
BREFRAARBZABED
158U - I 3% AT BE R A K 78
ERBEMET

(a)

(b)
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Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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3 HXRRBERE(H&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 AREEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c) #3%£mI A (c) Financial instruments in Level 3
i —IBRZIBE R A IE If one or more of the significant inputs is
ERAEEmBEE AT not based on observable market data, the

Bt NS4k - instrument is included in Level 3.
TERBHER T -_=FK The following table summarises the fair
—E-F+-A=+—H value and quantitative information about
ARFELMALEREES R the significant unobservable inputs used
ERCEMR AN EBETERN in Level 3 fair value measurements of
A ArBEREREELS investments in unlisted private investment
RPN TEEEHR: fund and entities as at 31 December 2023

and 2022:

it —E=-= —ZE-— BAZLEEZ2Y ELBEESYRAAAEEZEAR
Description 2023 2022 Significant Relationship of
BETT BETT unobservable unobservable inputs
HK$’000 HK$'000 inputs to fair value
FLMALEREES HBEEMNTPER S ER RPEHRYES AAEBELRD
Unlisted private investment fund 13,872 13,815  Recent transaction prices  The higher the transaction prices,
of underlying assets the higher the fair value
RIFLMALEEB ERERE MHREREEERE HRE MHEEREYS e
DRABEYE, H=
Equity investment in - 5,474 Discount rate and The higher/higher the discount
an unlisted private entity sales growth rate rate/sales growth rate, the

lower/higher the fair value

RIFELTLEERBZEZRE AR5 ER REEXRYEE AaEEES

Equity investments in 13,006 820 Recent transaction  The higher the transaction prices,

unlisted private entities prices the higher the fair value
26,878 20,109
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3 HMEKEREERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) Z#E3hemT A (/) (¢) Financial instruments in Level 3
(continued)
TREJINFRNEIRIAZ The following table presents the changes
- in Level 3 instruments for the year:
—E-=F =~
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FY R Opening balance 20,109 15,453
20 Addition - 830
EAnBEAARMEEEA®D Changes in fair value of financial
TREEAABEED assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 6,769 3,826
FIRE & Closing balance 26,878 20,109
4 BEAREFHHFRHE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

A RA G AF BTG TERNBEL
R EMAR BRERESEBRAE
BARAKREMHANAIEEY-

ARERE R AR RAE (A ET R RER - EAEH
S ETEA LR HEEHERS
RTA-HT—MBRFEREERNER -
EREERBEERMEAFLEKRS
EOE RBRERER T X

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.
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4 EXRgsHEEHRHE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FEZAHFERE

AEEREUFETEREER
ST T MOR S T SR (E -
AR R CERESRT
BB AIR I 7F B MORL(E A
B « 349 MR EL 05 2 7 0 2 1
e EReBRRA KT AR
SEBHYEEEEEE R
5 F KR 77 S HURE -

FE W BR Rz i 5T B

THMEECEHEREDREED
R\ M AR BRREE -
AEBENEHZFBRRMEERR
Bt E@ARER RELAEH
BEESE BITHAERERE
HIRZ AR MMt R HI BT - B
AEIEBREIMAAZBABERE
AIE R KT RES ©

FEMEEZRIE

WA E S R (BRI
SRS E Y FEEN K
AIZE {E R E 4 5T o ] e Bl % 58
To AU PR (B (B 5t B 5k T 0 f M
T REHE AR Y
B R (5t o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs
on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for financial assets is
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.
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4 EXRgsHEEERHE (&)

(c)

(d)

FEMEEZRIE (&)

MEREFEAEZBREE (2
EReREBMNREZTRE
S EERR)  HEYEAER
SUATE A FRE - BT B A
S BTSRRI R

REMEZQIREE

REWMEZHEDREELHNE
Ab 22 & AR e [ S MEXER ) #
T-BRAMBESYFHAERM
BRRE BEERBRBETS
ARZABLEHERS -

AAEAEREANKRRNEES)
A et g HIREHM BN KD
FHEEEFLEAFHENEK
[\ Bz o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-
annually by qualified valuers by considering
comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.
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4 EXRgsHEEHRHE (&)

(e)

(f)

ME BMERREBZERFR

AEEEEEECEYE BFE
KRR A (E T A IR S AR BRI
ERX -Zbsr IIRERALEE
ENEZME BERZBER
ERFROBELREL - WE
AERERERNMGEFT 2FR &
HEESRMTE L
MORE ZA K E 2 BB Rk
FEBEEE - BEREEFHX
g EEFER R AR - E iR
AR T EFHLIRES
RmBHARBE 2T ERTE
Fﬁ—ﬁi@:}o

FREBRIELFE
$¢l % fE AR RE 18 R B P

1S o N TE & Hb BT 1S T 8 45 5
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂ% HEXBKRARE
PEZRRGAMEBEZER
SEREMBRTHE - NEER
BAGFT = B B SN ER SN T T 7
REFBHEZREECBE M
EREEERBBEREY S
ABRRERR ZE=BBYEE
THEBHEREZFAEHRMEL
TR IR
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Useful lives of property, plant and

(f)

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 EXRgsHEEERHE (&)

(f)

(9)

e RIELEFTEH (&)

fHEEERSEE A EHIRAK
& SR Tt 1) 5 T 8 R e B 2 R Bk
iR & 18 B 2 K8 - RIS S e
ETHREEZRZETERBEEE R
HMIBE R - RTHEHRAER
EHAERMKEERM L
BERZERMBHEEZERANE
EMSHAEEERENK SR
RzBE(FEG)EE WA
BRERBMEFER ZEZEL
TEMFGEHHRE I ELERIAE
ENMPTEHZh 2 R

C SR R 7 B MR 2 B

RAEETRYEFE 2 AT #3H
FER BEEREC2EBIUSE
REXMAE-FEHEBEERERE
ERREBEREEREMHNET
FARBRR BRETEEXFTE
HEVMXGHEESAERZAELL
BMiHR S HERZE -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Income taxes and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax charges in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties

In assessing the net realisable value of stock
of completed properties, the management
took reference to the independent qualified
professional valuations. The assessment is
dependent on certain key assumptions that
require subjective assumptions and significant
management estimates, including adjustment
factors on comparable market transactions
used in valuation of completed properties held
for sale.
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4 EXRgsHEEHRHE (&)

() EXTHMERE MR 2 BRE
(%)

AEBRBEETHKMEFENA
“ﬁ@ﬁ% W) T B O HUR B
H-EAERFERNEREE
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BRI E IR FENER Y LA
i K fh AT e

1ﬁ%ﬁ1ﬁ§+ RRBEAGREFTEES
B ZEESevERENRN
EERXTEREE
5 SHEAR
ARBZRETHREERERBEAER

BERRE(NEBEEEREE]) K
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MERBB-DFEER HELHEE-
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(g) Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties (continued)

The Group recognises provision for write-
down of stock of properties according to net
realisable value of the stock of completed
properties. Provision for write-down of stock
of completed properties is required when the
net realisable value is lower than the carrying
value. Recognition of net realisable value
involves judgment and estimation.

If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact
the carrying value of stock of completed
properties for the corresponding period.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM?”). The Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) -
manufacture and distribution of electronic products
for EMS customers.

Property Holding — development, sale and lease of
properties.
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DRER (&)

TBRLERRECTHEHNASERA
NERNIRE  UFHERREDEE
Re T BEERRERBE DA FAZET
EFHEENMRR LT EEERR
AERE AR YA - E A g8, W — %
BOBRERA-FERELEBEQRE
BeaBouaE ETEREXLR
DERAX - MERLERRERHEZE
& BHE BAR S B IS MR P& 7 A —
HEE-

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other losses/gains
— net, finance costs — net and share of loss of an
associate but excludes corporate and unallocated
expenses. Other information provided to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

EMSZFS  MEFEDH a5
Property
Holding
EMS division division Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE-Z-=E1+-H=+—H  For the year ended 31 December 2023
JI:3:5
oMk External revenue
EPAHME Revenue from contracts with customers
W e R A Timing of revenue recognition
—EX-BE - At a point of time 3,123,899 - 3,123,899
Hib ezt KR Revenue from other sources
—HEEWA - Rental income - 61,769 61,769
3,123,899 61,769 3,185,668
DHEE Segment results 191,400 79,940 271,340
nE Depreciation 63,278 43 63,321
ElREECEFHE Share of profit of joint ventures = 49,462 49,462
REMELAEBEED Change in fair value of investment properties - (12,062) (12,062)
B METE R Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties - (2,208) (2,208)
BARX Capital expenditure 20,816 - 20,816
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5 SIMER (EF) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

EMSESFS YR E I FEk
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BETT BETL BRI
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE-Z-__#+-A=F+—HLEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
oMk External revenue
EFEAHME Revenue from contracts with customers
W He R A Timing of revenue recognition
~EE-EY - At a point of time 3,404,482 - 3,404,482
H b &5 R Revenue from other sources
—HERA - Rental income - 62,192 62,192
3,404,482 62,192 3,466,674
NEEE Segment results 157,165 (88,095) 69,070
ne Depreciation 69,653 43 69,696
BEAELEEFE Share of losses of joint ventures - (44,073) (44,073)
BREMERREEED Change in fair value of investment properties - (80,148) (80,148)
EERMERE 2 MR EE Provision for write-down of stock of
completed properties - (9,800) (9,800
BEREY Capital expenditure 92,756 - 92,756
EMSHM #MEHEEDM k]
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BETR BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-Z-=%+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2023
NBEE Segment assets 2,837,849 2,167,230 5,005,079
RECENER Interests in joint ventures = 2,071,517 2,071,517
MEHIHEELSE Total reportable segment assets 2,837,849 4,238,747 7,076,596
EMSEFS  #ERHE M ok
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BB BETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB-—F+-A=+—81 As at 31 December 2022
DHEE Segment assets 3,147,298 2,186,962 5,334,260
AELENRE Interests in joint ventures - 2,058,112 2,058,112
ERDHEELT Total reportable segment assets 3,147,298 4,245,074 7,392,372
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DRER (&)

DHMEETBRBRRME BEERE
REME ERAREE A2bEXMNE
@m FE EXRUEFE BRES
BRAK - FANSRIE BT 2 AL U AR SR -
XRHRE EHRRTEFRALRE R
ReEEY BETEERRAABETA
HttzmPW AN EREE TEA2RT
B REMBHEE B WO FRE
MEEERRDEEE-

ARy HEEEBRMESHATAEZ
HEROT -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, interests in joint ventures, inventories,
stock of completed properties, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, but exclude financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
derivative financial instruments, deferred income
tax assets, current income tax recoverable and
corporate and unallocated assets.

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to
profit before income tax is provided as follows:

—E-= —_EF_—

2023 2022

BT T 7S F T

HK$’000 HK$’000

2R EWEE Reportable segment results 271,340 69,070
H A Other income 14,731 12,333
Efh s — 55 Other gains — net 2,612 136,764
BEKA—F5R Finance costs — net (64,441) (38,338)
FEIG B = R R E1E Share of loss of an associate - (4,170)
TERADEAS Corporate and unallocated expenses (24,127) (21,009)
R Bt 15 B4 A 7 Profit before income tax 200,115 154,650
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5 ZEEHR (&)

TERONEERBEEHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total

N assets as follows:
—E=-= —_E -
2023 2022
BT T TS F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A2/, BEE Reportable segment assets 7,076,596 7,392,372
BEAnEBEFAEMEZEKA Financial assets at fair value through
MR EE other comprehensive income 100,138 158,616
NMESMTE Derivative financial instruments 11,324 21,435
EEMSIEE Deferred income tax assets 19,480 19,662
& HR AT Bl S A Current income tax recoverable 1,688 1,356
TERRIEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 101,030 84,792
BEMBERRRANBEE Total assets per consolidated
statement of financial position 7,310,256 7,678,233

HBERAE 2 HROT

Reconciliations of other material

items are as

follows:
—_E_-= —_E_-—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Depreciation

— A 2wy I 4z - Reportable segment total 63,321 69,696
— R AIARE - Corporate headquarters 2,237 2,235
65,558 71,931

BEARAE Capital expenditure
— A E2mD PR - Reportable segment total 20,816 92,756
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5 oWER(H&E) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
RARIRBRETIM U TREAEER The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of
WEmHE D WEs i (IREEEE the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
U ERE) is determined by the destination of the invoices

billed, is as follows:
—EC-=HE —EF-=
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

b =M North America 355,376 472,813

TN (FBEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,831,943 1,991,567

B Europe 771,400 655,048

BB Hong Kong 226,949 347,246

3,185,668 3,466,674

HE_T-_=F+-_A=+—H1
FE 4 ¥1,415,962,000T (=&
— 48 %1,652,473,0007T ) KB
#326,047,000c (T = —F : B
416,578,0007T ) 2 Wz 2 Bl 2K B K
IBEP ZEREFPSEASEEKRGE 2
10%3K JA |k o 2 F W s BEMSER I EAG
Y2k o

AT AAREBEIZMETISE D 2 IR
BEEDN:

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenues
of approximately HK$1,415,962,000 (2022:
HK$1,652,473,000) and HK$326,047,000 (2022:
HK$416,578,000) were derived from the top two
external customers respectively. These customers
individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the
EMS division.

Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical market is as follows:

—E=-= —_F-—
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=M North America - 1
M (FBEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 286,350 352,033
B Europe 8 14
&5 Hong Kong 4,177,724 4,236,709
4,464,082 4,588,757
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5 ZEEHR (&)

FRBEEBRBEME BER&RME-
REMX ERREE RELEN
a RAREBESAEMEZERA
WEeMmEE TTEERIA -FTE&k
HA e W AR KA R R R IR 2 - A
BRELEMBMREE -

AEEERRATNIETEFPALARD

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use
assets, interests in joint ventures, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
derivative financial instruments, deposits and other
receivables and restricted cash. They exclude
deferred income tax assets.

The Group has recognised the following liabilities

afE: related to contracts with customers:
—EC-=HE —_E-=
2023 2022
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
S48 E-EMSIEM Contract liabilities — EMS division 136,502 131,574

TRIRED R E—FEE AR
ENABAEENCERRETHR:

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities that were satisfied in prior year:

—EgE=-= —_EF-—
2023 2022
BT T S F I
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMSHEBFY EMS division 131,574 126,291
6 HftlA OTHER INCOME
—E-=F —F-=
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 46 B Government grants 12,095 11,447
S B R R T Sales of scrap and spare parts 795 857
BARBEAEMEEERAD Dividend income from a financial
PRAEERERA asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,827 -
Hity Others 14 29
14,731 12,333
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7 BEERIAX(BERESEHME)

7

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

—=E-= =
2023 2022
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE -He FREMERER Wages, salaries, allowances and

other termination benefits 365,896 408,929

IRRE PR AS — R E 3G 8l Pension costs — defined contribution
schemes 43,568 48,182
409,464 457 111

AEBREEMBEEREBRR LR
SR EEE ([AEEFE]) A
BerElv EERASEEES A
B UEESHFRABITAEE-BER
BeiE AEBEREREEFAS M
FFEER MR @B AREMRBUA (T
EREBRFERESFEEG) 2
5% AEBEREECHRERE RS
RAB¥1800L (ZEZZF G AAK
1,50070) ~ A EHAEFBTREE -

I EAERBOLW 2 HR (BIEEEE
R BEMARELZTE AEER
18 B B3 2 30 A DAE 85 57 E L AKET
g 2BRBHE-

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2022: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to
offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.
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EERANAX (BERESHE)
(%)

R AR AAE ([ E]) Kb 8
RAZEBERTELBEBMNRILZ
BREMFTBIKE

EEAMBARIAEPERMEREX
RIRETEIE R - BB A R BT  —
AP mEr &R B R I
WEEERKEEZENKRE ZFHET
WS RS RERDRAH-R
IKFE o

FIAGRE R EmRERE 2B K AL
78 543,568,000 (—Z T = —F B
48,182,000 ) FE A S E gt AN B FF B
EEERE L INPA T
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Vietnam are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC and Vietnam governments.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in
the PRC and Vietnam. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the schemes. The PRC and Vietnam governments
are responsible for the pension liability to the
retired staff. No forfeited contributions under these
schemes can be used to reduce the existing level
of contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$43,568,000 (2022:
HK$48,182,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is analysed as follows:

—EC-=F —EF-=
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ME- -BERERB2ITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 44,284 47,971
FREEECTE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 21,274 23,960
e Depreciation 65,558 71,931
% SR B & Auditor’s remuneration
— FEi R - Audit service 3,088 3,076
—FEBET R — Non-audit services 361 233
RITFEE Bank charges 3,624 3,299
BFERE Building management fees 17,101 15,170
v 2 m &EFm Chemicals and consumables 33,037 33,192
He Commission fees 502 10
BRE Cleaning expenses 2,912 3,246
REE Entertainment expenses 1,137 734
AT b 78 K 2= Government rent and rates 2,971 2,851
BT M hn & Government surcharges 6,042 5,168
= Insurance charges 2,251 2,303
FEERBEEER Legal and professional fees 4,720 4,241
AEBERAE Motor vehicle expenses 4,825 4,719
WRAENMEE X Office and factories expenses 4,981 3,854
RHAE s KEHERS Operating lease rental in respect of
short-term leases 3,701 1,283
R - FIIREMETREFMEZ  Recruitment, training and
other staff welfares expenses 2,464 2,026
HIENIRE Repairs and maintenances 18,467 14,749
REE Security expenses 2,526 2,440
EIRE Travelling expenses 3,159 1,304
e e = Transportation 22,365 30,979
NARX Utility expenses 24,344 26,455
Hh Others 5,695 8,874
Hipfggx  Otheroperatingexpenses 170,273 - 170,206
@R Total 235,831 242,137
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9 Hf(EE) WE-—FHE 9 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET
—EBCD=F —F-—

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

[N (&), e — F5 Exchange (losses)/gains — net (5,267) 15,396

RAEHE —HE2 AR ZWaE Gains on deemed disposal of an associate - 117,064
HEWE BEMKREZWE Gains on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 1,961 804

HE BRI = Gains on lease modification 333 832

WEEME BB L& B Write-off of property, plant and equipment (8,055) -

1t o] H Ath B A BR 5K Write-back of other payables 5,930 2,668

(5,098) 136,764
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10 ESREREEE2ME (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EEME (#)

M1 ERAREERRRAEFEHRITH
BE EFME R EXHE -

Mo : REBEER-Z-__F+—A
THNEBREBUENTESE-

M3 : BEARER-ZE-__F+—A8
“tTNREZRERBIIIFNT
5%

BE-_T_=Fr-_ZT_-—
+-_A=+—"HBILFEE HE=E
EHREXB B RETANE -

FRAAEEBEINHNETE
ZFRWREIBEEFIMARNEE L
MAREB R 2 ZE) LA S BE
BifmfE -

EEENRERN
WERERNESRAKENREZR
—E o EN - F+ A
=t+t—HIFEARAZ-
EERILERBEER
WHEAMNESKIERSEEMNR

HE_ZE - =K —
+—A=+—HIEFERZff-

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Note 1: Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and his
remuneration has been disclosed above.

Note 2:  Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David resigned as
Independent Non-executive Director on
29 November 2022.

Note 3: Mr. Lo Wai Ho, Ashley was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director on
29 November 2022.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
No Directors’ termination benefits were paid

during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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10 ESREREEE2ME (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

RRAEEERBOE=FFH
KB

REBE_TE_="FK-_FT_—

+-AZ+—HLEEER AR

AT ERIEHESRBERE=S
SATEARE -

MES ZZRFESEHNE
AEBRERZEESNEAETR
RENER EERMEMK
ZHEHR

REBE-_ZE_=—FK_FT -
+ A=+t BLFEFERK
FAEMER TENES X%
EEEEHNEAEBRBRZEE

EMBEETBRAEMENR &
EFRMELEMR S -

EERRE ZHASHFH
EXER

RBE_TE_=FK=-FT=Z
+Z A=+ —HLEFEFERK
FAEMER A2a W EE T
MY AEEEBMARAIEEE
EdEETERRSEAERD
BFEERG LHIEN-

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

10 DIRECTORS’

AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties

(e)

(f)

for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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10 ESREREEE2ME (&)

() EEBESEMEAL

FRN AEERZEESHE A
T RERNE(ZE_F:=8)
BT HEZMEEEN EXET
OB T —R(ZE==

MB) AT ZBEMSEHAT :

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(g) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
four (2022: three) Directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2022: two) individual is as follows:

—EC-=HE —E-=
2023 2022
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e MHEMEF Salaries and other benefits 2,015 3,493
TE4T Bonus 145 269
BRIRE KA — R EHREE Pension costs — defined
contribution schemes - 18
2,160 3,780
A
Number of individual
—E=-= —_=EF_--
2023 2022
i & &5 & Emolument bands
75 #1,500,001 7T — 7 #2,000,0007T  HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000 - 1
78 #2 000,001 7T — A #2,500,0007  HK$2,000,001- HK$2,500,000 1 1

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 21 1



e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 ESREREEE2ME (&)

(h)
L

EREEE(TEEES) 2 H

EREER (TERES M

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(h) Senior management’s (excluding
Directors) emoluments by band

The emoluments of senior management

SN FUATEE: (excluding Directors) fell within the following
bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-=F —E-=
2023 2022
B < &8 Emolument bands
78 T T — 8 #500,0007T HK$Nil - HK$500,000 1 -
78 #500,001 70 — 7 %1,000,0000  HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 - -
7 #1,000,001 7T — 78 #1,500,0007 HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2
71,500,001 7T — & #2,000,0007T  HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
11 BERAR—FE 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—E-=F —_E-=
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE WA Finance income
—HRITERZFERLA — Interest income on bank deposits 25,686 19,317
A& A AN Finance costs
- HEBBZMERX — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (1,451) (1,082)
—RITERZMERX — Interest expenses on bank borrowings (88,676) (56,573)
BETEARE Total finance costs (90,127) (67,655)
BB R AN —F5E Finance costs — net (64,441) (38,338)

212
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Fr G Bi B <

EEFERERELERRRES 2
fis 3 8 SR BRI B R B K 16.5% (= F
== 16.5%) iR -

ANEE TR A EB A E AR
BB H([EEMREH]) M
RAEGEFFBZ25% (2 ==
25% ) WARBZEEMBRRE
mEE (&M BERAAE ([# 5%
MBI -EFHEMNTEITRE
PETZ215% (ZE - _F:15%)
BECEMBHRE EE_TZ=F
+Z—A=+—H-

AFAGRB RS RIS HREERE:

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
at a rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated
profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
Limited (“WTSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
rate of 15% (2022: 15%) under the New and High
Technology Enterprises status till 31 December
2028.

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

—EBC-=F —_E-—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEH Current income tax
—BBNER - Hong Kong profits tax 4,900 5,169
— I IE — Overseas taxation 35,501 29,908
—BAFEBRERE — Over-provision in prior years (2,333) (5,799)
B — M BEEMKZH B AR Dividend withholding tax paid
ZEDIRREBREZ on the distributed retained profits
& B A of a PRC incorporated subsidiary 6,998 6,543
EEFTER (MEE21) Deferred income tax (Note 21) 2,323 6,393
47,389 42,214
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214

12 FiEHMEX (&) 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
BAAREBRASENRAMNEZNIES The tax on the Group's profit before income tax
RIREAE Ot E 88 AR E A # i F differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
HREASENERSENOT using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

—E-=F —_EF-—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B BT 15 %5 A K Profit before income tax 200,115 154,650
RHARSANEZ Tax calculated at the domestic tax
W R E 2 BIR rates applicable to profits in the
respective places 34,280 32,463
EERBERAREEDE Tax effects of associate and joint
BRRBEE BB E ventures’ results reported, net of tax (8,161) 7,960
AR A Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 9,182 24,761
HARTWA Income not subject to tax (4,562) (22,636)
2 A S e — A B A Dividend withholding tax paid or
FSZ B B A B 2 4R B8 A B payable on the retained profits of
Z B FEME PRC incorporated subsidiary 8,805 13,888
BARERTIEEBER Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses
HMERMERE and other temporary difference (4,799) (14,120)
WEBRELEMGHEE Tax losses of which no deferred income
BT IEE 18 tax asset was recognised 14,977 5,697
BEFEHERE Over-provision in prior years (2,333) (5,799)
Frisfim= Income tax expense 47,389 42,214
ERAMBEBITARE/RI7T% (ZF The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17%
——E21%) . (2022: 21%).

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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13 ®RE

TEC=FRZEZ_FEMNORK
B 5 Rl & #)7% #35,887,0007T (& I
B #0.0757) kA& #21,5633,0007T
(B B0.0457L) R A QA FE
[ERRBFAS LEZERIEE
T =F+-A=t+—HILEEXRH
BB AERBB0.03TT AN BE
14,355,0007T © It & B 7% ¥ 3% 0 % < i
BRER 2 REAR B -

13 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2023 and 2022 were
approximately HK$35,887,000 (HK$0.075 per
share) and HK$21,533,000 (HK$0.045 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 of HK$0.03 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$14,355,000 will be proposed at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. These
financial statements do not reflect this final
dividend payable.

—EC-=HE g
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ERRE - ESREE0.037T  Interim dividend paid - HK$0.03

—E 4 A¥0.027T) (2022: HK$0.02) per share 14,354 9,570

R AHAR B —FABE0.037T  Proposed final dividend — HK$0.03
(ZT =4 : 5%0.0457L) (2022: HK$0.045) per share 14,355 21,533
28,709 31,103
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14 ERER
(@ EX
FREABRMDIBRARARES

AFE A R BB B4 PO B B AT
AR BT B -

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—E-=F —_E-—
2023 2022
KRAFER AEMLFE Profit attributable to owners
(BEFT) of the Company (HK$’'000) 152,726 112,436
BETEER 2 IEFHE  Weighted average number of ordinary
(F) shares in issue (in thousands) 478,484 478,484
EREAREF (BIT) Basic earnings per share (HK$) 0.32 0.23
(b) #F (b) Diluted

MEAMEFELSRERES
& X A5 W EFE A EE
ZBEEE B -

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

No diluted earnings per share is presented
for both years because there is no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding
throughout both years.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BT FREIE k&l HKAREE "E At
Plant,
machinery Furniture
Construction and and Motor
Buildings inprogress  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BT AT A%Tn A¥Trn  A%Tr  B¥Trn
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
W-E--5-B-H At 1 January 2022
KA E Cost 151,426 5955 869,398 143,301 13,230 1,183,310
2HFTERAE Accumulated depreciation and imparment ~ (65,931) - (751,765)  (134,531) (11485 (963,712
REFE Net book amount 85,495 5955 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,508
HZ-Z-_F+-A=1t-HLEE Yearended 31 December 2022
FOEREFE Opening net book amount 85,495 5955 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,508
HE Additions 975 65,784 25,989 - 8 92,756
e Disposals - - (80) - - (80)
ik Depreciation (9,013) - (38,266) (447) (245)  (47971)
SRHEER Currency translation differences (3,290) (970) (8,137) (24) - (12421)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 74,167 70,769 97,139 8,299 1508 251,882
RZBZZ¥+ZB=+-H At 31 December 2022
KAE Cost 143,987 70,769 828,305 142,950 13,078 1,199,089
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and imparment  (69,820) - (731,166)  (134,651)  (11570)  (947,207)
REFE Net book amount 74,167 70,769 97,139 8,299 1,508 251,882
WE HE
BT ERIR REE HKAREE "E &3t
Plant,
machinery  Furniture
Construction and and Motor
Buildings  in progress equipment fixtures  vehicles Total
BETT BT B%Tn AB%Tn  B¥Tn  BETrn
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BZE-Z-=%+-B=+-HLFE Yearended 31 December 2023
ENERFE Opening net book amount 74,167 70,769 97,139 8,299 1,508 251,882
RE Additions 953 3,217 16,586 - - 20,816
B Transfer 57,162 (73,526) 16,364 - - -
HE Disposals (16) - (4,347) - - (4,363)
bl Depreciation (8,863) - (34,695) (346) (380) (44,284)
W Write-off (7,874) - (115) (66) - (8,055)
ERBEEE Currency translation differences (1,613) (520) (2,173) (1) - (4,307)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 113,916 - 88,759 7,886 1,128 211,689
W-B-=f+-B=+-H At 31 December 2023
KA E Cost 184,942 - 827,335 142,789 10,426 1,165,492
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and imparment ~ (71,026) - (738,576)  (134,908) (9,298)  (953,803)
REFE Net book amount 113,916 - 88,759 7,886 1,128 211,689
RZZEZ_=F+ZA=+—8" As at 31 December 2023, certain bank borrowings
ETHRTEFRHERBEARAN B are secured on buildings with carrying amount
19,145,000 ( =Z & =— = & : of approximately HK$19,145,000 (2022:
75 #19,734,0007T ) 2 1 F 1K i HK$19,734,000) (Note 30).

(KF7E30)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 21 7



218

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 REWHE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-=F —E2-=
2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Rn—A—H At 1 January 1,959,215 2,041,508
AR BEER Fair value losses (12,062) (80,148)
ElkmE =R Currency translation differences (331) (2,145)
®»+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,946,822 1,959,215

The Group’s interest in investment properties at
their net book values are on medium-term leases of
10 to 50 years.

AEEZRERFEARZREMER
HIZ10E50F 2 A HIF A4 E -

R—_E-_=ZF+-_A=+—H"
ETRHROTEZRBHEELEAN B

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank borrowings
are secured on investment properties with an

1,915,000,0007C (Z T = —F : B H aggregate carrying amount of approximately
1,927,000,0007T ) 2 1% & ¥ % (E 1K 7 HK$1,915,000,000 (2022: HK$1,927,000,000)
(FfF5E30) (Note 30).

EXFTREEMEEERRE:

Value of investment properties shown above

comprises:

—E-=F —E=-=
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEME Properties in Hong Kong 1,925,000 1,936,400
BAEIND Properties outside Hong Kong 21,822 22,815
1,946,822 1,959,215

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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16 REWE (F)

rEBZEERRE

REVMEBFFRERLBEAMKE
KREMER_T_=FR_F=_=
TZ A=+ —BZhEHE R ZAD
ﬁ%%lrﬁﬁﬁ@ AT HAR
BRAEMBEE RSB BREFEUK
HEAERZE 13553 ZEREMEZRR
BEGTEEHRINHENT -

7N 5% (8] 2 B 05 1 B A B 5 R S AR T
TREVMERGHE EREEEERE
H-REAEEZRER BEEEZ
BEEREEEEMNEREXFED

THEA Nk
u‘—_r af — A °

52 /B i E BN S RS BB
DI EIR AR BIEZBH - (£ R
Hhr—H5 HEKEIRE  URE
REEED B

»E Hﬂ}*

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The investment properties are valued semi-annually
on the direct comparison approach. The valuations
of the investment properties at 31 December 2023
and 2022 were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited, who
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value measurement information
for these investment properties in accordance with
HKFRS 13 is given below.

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly
to the management. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
management and the team at least once bi-
annually, in line with the Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that
explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 21 9
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16 REWE (F)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

EEBZHEBRE (&) Valuation processes of the Group
(continued)
AREETE
Fair value measurements
HEEE
REBMS EXHM EAEE
ZHE BEfE2% Bx2y
(E14R) (%E24R) (%834)
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ERAREETE Recurring fair value measurements
R-E-=5+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2023 - - 1,946,822
RZEZZF+-RA=+—H As at 31 December 2022 - - 1,959,215
FRNB1R - F2RNEIF BT & There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2

#is o

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

and Level 3 during the year.
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16 REWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
FEREAXRELZBRERZYTELR Fair value measurements using significant
B8 (E34) unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RENE
Investment properties
B8 EBHEH o
Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BETL BETT BETTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W-2-=%-5-8 At 1 January 2023 1,936,400 22815 1,959,215
AREEESR Fair value losses (11,400) (662) (12,062)
EXBREER Currency translation differences - (331) (331)
R-ZBZ=f+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2023 1,925,000 21,822 1,946,822
FRREHBELAE Total unrealised losses for the year
(RERFHEEETA included in the consolidated income
BENBERATRENE statement for assets held at the end
AREEZEHIET) of the year, under ‘Change in fair
value of investment properties’ (11,400) (662) (12,062)
R-ZFE-_—_%—H—H At 1 January 2022 2,016,200 25,308 2,041,508
AREEEE Fair value losses (79,800) (348) (80,148)
EHHEEE Currency translation differences - (2,145) (2,145)
RZEZZF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 1,936,400 22,815 1,959,215
FRREHBEBE Total unrealised losses for the year
(RERMBEETA included in the consolidated income
BAMERN[RENE statement for assets held at the end
ARBEEEEIET) of the year, under ‘Change in fair
value of investment properties’ (79,800 (348) (80,148)
WEMEZAABEEFEFAEELR Fair values of investment properties have been
EHE EPBRIRAUNREEAIZRR valued by the direct comparison approach
M EME - W2 EMRB TS LA assuming sale of the properties in their existing
BRULBREERSER - states with the benefit of vacant possession and by

making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market.
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16 REWE (F)

EREREZERSHUFTELIN
BE (%3 (&)

BERDBRREBEARRETSLE
W I ERHEREIGRRAL 1R
HE- &2 0% BEGEREAMBEU
ZHO AR ERMEZEE LI
fHERYEGTMENAEIFELE
REMREFENEBCBERE T
B - NBHERETE BRI
FWEEMHRIT

FR-HERDAEES -

AEBERBCEHERHIEEYE 7]
WAHBEGT WAHEERIRENY
EZIGEREN EHRHENEBSESHA
e -BHz—_T-_=F+-_A=+—H
EFE BEMECHSWABLBOR

B 561,769,000 (ZE - —F B K
62,192,00070) ' MAEBEEEZER 4O A
B 15,022,000 (—ZE = —F B

14,738,0007T ) °
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 3 to
6 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$61,769,000 (2022:
HK$62,192,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$15,022,000 (2022:
HK$14,738,000).
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17 & 17 LEASES

AW ERHBEARESEHEANME
EWER-

AEBEHEZHEMEZRIERE

MAZEREE-HE—RETE R2E
3F -

) ZEMBRRRFIHEER
=8

A MR KRIIRIATEHE

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

The Group leases a number of premises mainly for
use as factories, office premises and warehouses.
The leases are typically made for fixed periods from
2-3 years.

() Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial

EAANTE: position shows the following amounts relating
to leases:
—E_-= —E-—
2023 2022
BT T BT I
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEEE Right-of-use assets
THE T & o (e AR Leasehold land and land use rights 82,454 79,288
TR EETF Factories and buildings 15,618 40,389
98,072 119,677
HEEE Lease liabilities
7 & Current 14,676 18,914
FEM B Non-current 1,492 19,419
16,168 38,333
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17 #HE (&)

(i)

REMBRARPIHEER
=% (&)

—E U BREFEERENBE
7,709,000 (—ZE - —4F Bk
31,926,0007C) M FRAEEE-

REE-_ZE-_=F+-_HA=+—H
EFEA KHEEXFTHEEHE
B -ArEEEREE EEEAR
HEEEXN /B ®E6,927,0007T
(ZZ = —F:%1%16,142,000
TIMEBHEAGBRNAEBE
7,260,000 (ZZE = —F B
16,974,0007T ) °

R-ZE-_=%F+-_A=+—8"
HETROTEFRAEABANBE
53,574,000t (Z T = =

7 55,222 00070 ) Z 1 FA#EE
EEERE (MFE30) o

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

17 LEASES (continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
(continued)

Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the 2023 financial year were HK$7,709,000
(2022: HK$31,926,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group modified leases with right-of-use assets
amounted to approximately HK$6,927,000
(2022: HK$16,142,000) and lease liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$7,260,000
(2022: HK$16,974,000) under the mutual
agreement with landlord.

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank borrowings
are secured on right-of-use assets with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$53,574,000 (2022:
HK$55,222,000) (Note 30).
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17 HE (&) 17 LEASES (continued)
(i) ZKERBRINEERESHE (i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement
HEWRaKRITUTEEE The consolidated income statement shows the
AR e following amounts relating to leases:
—EgE-= —_EF-—
2023 2022
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000

FRAEEENITEX Y Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets

FTAE T & A b fsF A Leasehold land and land use rights 2,210 2,238
TITHEEF Factory and buildings 19,064 21,722
21,274 23,960
FEREX Interest expense
(BT ABRE R A) (included in finance costs) 1,451 1,082
EHEEHHEENHY Expenses relating to short-term leases
(BT AEMEERE) (included in other operating expenses) 3,701 1,283
5,152 2,365
—E_=_FHEREBENEER The total cash outflow for lease liabilities
4858 58 119,837,000 (=& in 2023 was HK$19,837,000 (2022:
Z T4 B ¥21,322,0007T) © HK$21,322,000).
18 S TEMWER 18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-=F —F-—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEERE Share of net assets 1,051,442 1,001,980
ERTEEDLE Loans to joint ventures 1,020,075 1,056,132
2,071,517 2,058,112
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18 ¥R ER (&)

18 INTERESTS

IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)
EEEEFEZ2EHHMAOT: Movements in share of net assets is analysed as
follows:
—EBCD=F —F-=
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
n—A—H At 1 January 1,001,980 1,046,053
EiEEERERE, (EBE) Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 49,462 (44,073)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,051,442 1,001,980
N_E-_=F+_A=+—H £&H As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interests
RUATIEEMEESEDERE#ER: in the following principal joint ventures, which are
unlisted:
ARER LA L i B BERERLH TEEHR BEMEE FEEE
Place of Proportion of Nature of the Measurement
Name of company incorporation ownership interest %  Principal activities relationship method
—E-=F _—B__f
2023 2022
EEEDRES REER P &t s
Talent Chain Investments Limited (Note) (Ff3) BV 35.7 35.7 Investment holding ~ Note Equity
BREEBRAF (M) 0 WERE i i3
Crown Opal Investment Limited (Note) Hong Kong 35.7 35.7 Property holding Note Equity
ARERRES NERE TER B
Open Vantage Limited BVI 35.7 35.7 Property investment  N/A Equity
B¥5E:  Talent Chain Investments LimitedZ 2% Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary

MBARTSRIEEBRAGINEDWER
BEB - MEEBERFAUREENR
XEF HPE0EBRAZEEE - N
ZZFF+ZA=Z+—H WREHFSH
100% (ZE - —_F:98% )ENEAK
B -

226
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of Talent Chain Investments Limited, is engaged in the
business of property holding. The property project represents
the holding of a commercial building in Kwun Tong, which
comprises 20-storey of office floors. As at 31 December
2023, 100% (2022: 98%) of the office portion were classified
as investment properties.
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18 ¥R ER (&)

Talent Chain Investments Limited*
R &E B R A A &Open Vantage
Limited 2 F4 A 2 &)+ H B% {7 30 & 7] BY
B HRE -

ATIINHEEERZMBERBE -

18 INTERESTS

IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal
Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their share.

Set out below is the summarised financial

information for joint ventures.

Talent Chain
Investments Limited aE
(Note i) (H#Fi) Open Vantage Limited Total
—E-=% -B--f C-—E-=§ —-Z--§ C-E-=f C—Z-ZE
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BETT BETT BETR BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE ASSETS
Ei ik} Non-current
REME (M) Investment properties (Note ii) 6,661,900 6,570,508 17,600 17900 6,679,500 6,588,408
FROAERR Total non-currentassets O,001,9001 6570508 [RALO00 17,900 [G6I9500  6,588408
hinkl Current
RHEEAE Total current assets 125,734 194,026 276 58 126,010 194,084
& LIABILITIES
pink ] Current
ENESERREMREHEE  Trade payable and other current liabilities
(TaEsRER (excluding financial liabilties) (135,592) (152,080) (158) (158) (135,750) (152,238)
hBaERE Total current liabilities (135,592) (152,080) (158) (158)  (135,750) (152,238)
Eink) Non-current
SRERE Financial liabilties (3,265,198) (3,366,228 (4,015) (4,015)  (3,269,213)  (3,370,243)
HitgEnBat Other non-current liabilities (455,330) (453,343) - - (455,330) (453,343)
Frpares Total non-current liabilties (3,720,528)  (3819,571) (4015) (4015  (3,724,543)  (3,823,586)
EEFE Net assets 2,931,514 2,792,883 13,703 13,785 2945217 2,806,668
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18 S EMNER (1E) 18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain ag
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
“g-zZfF CZ%¥--%f CZB-zf —Z--% CZEBE-ZE C—ZT_-f
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

BRTr  E¥TR  EETR E¥TT BETn AETX
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W& Revenue 187,116 197,671 364 364 187,480 198,035
BERT Operating expenses (47,090) (47,379) (127) (110) (47,217) (47,489)
THEX Administrative expenses (123) (120) (18) (14) (141) (134)
RENENAEEED Change in fair value of investment properties 11,867 (297,586) (300) (600) 11,567 (298,186)
BIELEEE I/ (EB) Profit/loss) from continuing operation 151,770 (147 414) (81) (360) 151,689 (147,774)
fEH (Ax) /B8 Income tax (expense)/credit (13,140) 24,323 - - (13,140) 24,323
BEERERBEEEY Profit/(loss) after income tax from

M/ (Bi8) continuing operation 138,630 (123,091) (81) (360) 138,549 (123,451)
i 2EKA Other comprehensive income
2ERA/ (BE)BE Total comprehensive income/(I0ss) 138,630 (123,091) (81) (360) 138,549 (123,451)
B 5 Note:

() ZEeBEAREAMBARZEAUBER:

(i) HBEMEZAABECHBILGEMNAE
ELBOERBAEREGE -BRKEE
MERRABESRINBFEIM -

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

() The amount represents the consolidated financial information
with its subsidiary.

(ii) Fair values of investment properties have been valued by
independent valuer with the direct comparison approach and
income capitalisation approach. The investment properties are
classified as Level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
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18 S LENER (&) 18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

B 78 R EH R Reconciliation of summarised financial
information
FIEmBERNEeEbERER 2R Reconciliation of the financial information presented
[EN =R S to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.
—E-=HF —_=EF_-—
2023 2022
BET T BEET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—HA—BZEEFE Net assets at 1 January 2,806,668 2,930,119
FEFMEB (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 138,549 (123,451)
R+—_A=+—HZEEZFE Net assets at 31 December 2,945,217 2,806,668
BEDE ERREN Interests in joint ventures and
EEFE®35.7% share of net assets @ 35.7% 1,051,442 1,001,980
JEMRE L Share of profits/(losses) of
B,/ (E8) @35.7% joint ventures @ 35.7% 49,462 (44,073)

ERTEECERBER 2EREE The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-

ZHABRR A EERBH 2 - H
EARENRED KB LBRAE
BRA2bEREFE LMD &F
TRABEETE

R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H8 A£H
WEBEBEAEECEZEARRERHA
BE(ZE-_—_F:8&)-

free and the repayment is subject to the agreement
of the joint venture partners. They represent the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group’s net investments in the joint
ventures. The amounts are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no capital
commitments nor contingent liabilities related to
the joint ventures (2022: Nil).
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19 fiE A = 19 SUBSIDIARIES

RZFZ=F+ZA=+—H 2K

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

230

BARZHBLT: December 2023 are as follows:

NEER FEM A L3 B BREARBRERE  AEEEGRFEZEEL TEXK
Percentage of equity
Place of Issued and fully interest attributable to

Name of company incorporation paid share capital the Group Principal activities

ZE-Zf ZECCF

2023 2022
REEAREE  35TET REBR
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100% Investment holding
ABABRES  BEI0R REBR
Catel (B.V.I.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100% Investment holding
HRBRAA B BEIT ESSE]
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property holding
3R Eigb ETERES
Elite Sourcing Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
KEEXEBRRA B BT REBBRRIEREER
BRARANRE
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding and
acting as an agent
for its immediate
holding company
ZEERAT i 7%1,000,0007C REBR
Top Plenty Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ABABRESE 1En REBR
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
i 2,500,000% 7T BEETER
Welco Technology Vietnam Company Limited  Vietnam US$2,500,000 100% 100% Electronic products
manufacturing
ESRE (BN BERAR hE 9,000,000% 7 REETER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited? PRC US$9,000,000 100% 100% Electronic products
manufacturing
ERTRBHE (R ERD A hE 30,000,000 ¢ REETER
Welco Wong's Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100% Electronic products
Limited manufacturing
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19 B AT (&) 19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
NAER FER A AL 3t BRORARRE  AREECRAEZESL TERHK
Percentage of equity
Place of Issued and fully interest attributable to
Name of company incorporation paid share capital the Group Principal activities
“EZ=fF ZZCZZF
2023 2022
#I1R T ETEMES
Wellink Technology Pte. Ltd. (formerly Singapore S$1 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
known as/A1 7 Wellink Dynamics Pte. Ltd.)
Eade () FRAA i 2,500,000% 7T RESTEm
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC US$2,500,000 100% 100% Electronic products
manufacturing
IREFERAA B0 75 %1,000,0007 ETERES
Wong's Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
IRIX (RE)BRAT B0 #5007 REHER
Wong's Industrial (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100% Investment holding
AA 20,000,008 HERTHRR
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100% Sales and marketing
X8 10,000% 7T m5HE
Wong's International USA Corporation United States of US$10,000 100% 100% Marketing
America
IRRBERLDA HE 1007 EfEmESH
Wong's Strategic Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
tORBERBEE WATAIEBERE- # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC
law.
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19

20

w2 R (&)

ERINEHAEBEEBEATEL
EAEBITERDEEFE T EM
BRR ARAEZRAEEEERER
A HIIEMHNE AR 2BF BB
DItk

BE_ZT_=—F+-_A=1+—RHLLF
J& A EAAT B - BT B R AL R ] 2 3%
TERER-

BRAaABEFAHMGEERA
MEMEE

) BRAAEESFAHMEERA
NEMEE2TE

BRARBEFAEMEZEEAR
THEERRAIFFIEFEENR
AiEz BARKE D R 5 MR
SRR qCIpocE= EH%EBCJ&%E%'J
NER - ZEFEFDRERE B
AEER RO BEBERMME-
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19

20

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2023.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in this category.
These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.
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20 MAABEs AHEM2EUY A 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
NEMmEE (8) THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(i) BAAEBEFAHMEZAEKWA (i) Equity investments at fair value through
HRERE other comprehensive income
EArBEFAEMAZAKA Equity investments at fair value through other
WREREBRRFRUATERKRSE : comprehensive income comprise the following

individual investments:

—EBC-=F —EF-=
2023 2022
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFHRAES Listed equity securities
—REAEL™ — Listed in Hong Kong 73,252 138,494
—REBEIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 8 13
JELETRAEFESH Unlisted equity securities 26,878 20,109
100,138 158,616
EWEETE Market value of listed securities 73,260 138,507
—EC-=E —_F-—
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMED Non-current 100,080 158,538
mE Current 58 78
st Total 100,138 158,616
BE-_T-_=F+=-H=+—H The loss in fair value of financial assets
IEFERRBEAABAETAE at fair value through other comprehensive
HEEHRANESREEZ AR income of HK$21,267,000 (2022: gain of
BEEIE A /B 21,267,000 T HK$10,067,000) was recognised in other
AAEMEERA (ZE=2F: comprehensive income for the year ended
W #5 % #10,067,0007T ) © 31 December 2023.
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21 ELEFEREE(BE)

UTEBBELEFRSMREERELEMSH

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES)

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and

BESN: deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:
—EC-=HF —=E-=

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Lkﬁﬁ’e MEE Deferred income tax assets 19,480 19,662
BEEMSHARE Deferred income tax liabilities (83,250) (81,070)
EEHEEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities (63,770) (61,408)

BEEFEHERESHEBEW T

The movements on the deferred income tax
account is as follows:

—E=-= —E-—

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

B—H— At 1 January (61,408) (50,002)
iy ?’m\l&/\%ﬁﬁ L (MF#E12)  Recognised in the consolidated income

statement (Note 12) (2,323) (6,393)

PE M 2 E A R Recognised in other comprehensive income 828 (3,525)

EMBRE=ESE Currency translation differences (867) (1,488)

BR+=-—A=+—H At 31 December (63,770) (61,408)
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21 EZEFIBBHEE (BE)
(%)

ARt AR — ISR 2 & ER AT

EEFEHEERABRERZ S
mT

EEFTEREE

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

fTEI8
AERERE B BRED  HEER AAEE ag
Decelerated tax Government Fair value of
depreciation  Provision grant  Tax loss derivative Total

BETT  BETR BRI BETR BETT  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-E--%-f-H At 1 January 2022 11,930 9,997 2,805 564 1,409 26,705
REAWERFA/ (%) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statement 3,140 2,213 (1,329) - - 4,024
RE#ZERANR Charged to the other comprehensive income - - - - (1,409) (1,409)
ERBEES Currency translation differences (1,140) (889) (199) - - (2,222)
RZZZZ#+ZA=1+—-H At31 December 2022 13,930 11,321 1,283 564 - 27,098
REERERNR Charged to the consolidated

income statement (2,028) 292 (1,266) - - (3,002)
BEEREES Currency translation differences (886) (161) (17) - - (1,064)
W=B==F+-A=+—-H At31 December 2023 11,016 11,452 - 564 - 23,032

EEFTS R BIE

Deferred income tax liabilities:

NEDNR fTEIR
MERERE EERE REENH DREE 4%
Fair value Dividend
Accelerated tax  adjustment on  withholding Fair value of
depreciation properties tax derivative Total
BB BBTT BB BBTT  BETRL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W-Z--—6-F-R At 1 January 2022 (14,747) (61,960) - - (8707)
REAMER (MK /HA (Charged)/credited to the consolidated income
statement (4,689) 1617 (7,345) - (0417)
REMZERANR Charged to the other comprehensive income - - - (2,116) (2,116)
ERBEER Currency translation differences 479 - 255 - 734
W-®--#+-B=+-0  At31 December 2022 (18,957) (60,343) (7,090) (2,116)  (88,506)
RESBERTA/ (1K) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
income statement 2,122 364 (1,807) - 679
REMZEARAGA Credited to the other comprehensive income - - - 828 828
EHREER Currency translation differences 91 - 106 - 197
R-B-=f+-B=+-H At 31 December 2023 (16,744) (59,979) (8,791) (1,288) (86,802)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 235



236

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 EXEFBHEE (BAE)

(%)

BEIEFTS I E E T A FE B RE B 1E M) 2
Al BE B MR R FERR B0 A B B IR 3t
S s HEEBRETER R_Z
T=F+ZA=+—H XxKEAANU
EIHRRAM B 2 Gt RE A IEEIE
#) 5% 351,308,000 ( — T =~ —4F:
75 #287,079,0007T ) © A i iRk 5 4
o MIBEBEEB RRERB AN EER
EBEMBEBNROEE TS BORMTIE
EEERELEHIBEEE -BEMBAA
fY 75 I8 B 18 4978 #351,308,0007T 7] £
[REfGEE (- —F HENBEBRA
B 47 #:268,336,0007T 7] £ fR HA 4% 4
KA B /8 A &) HY #975%619,195,0007T
AARRIYFLESE) o

R_E-_ZF+_A=Z+—H %R
PEGEMAZAMNEBRRMNRDIK
REBFNENEHNTRRAELHIBEEE
BHER, 791,000 (ZEZZF: 8%
7,090,0007T) B AR BtH TR H BIFE MK
VB RABINF GRS IKRE & F
A48 81,271,825,000C (—F ==
1 206,211,0007T ) fiE 52 IR FE 3
HEE RARSEFSBARDKRER
FI ] BE MK o ph AR B sE A Sz 2 BT 8
NAIFFD KRS 2 BB E N F5%

£10% °
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2023, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$351,308,000 (2022:
HK$287,079,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profit from these tax loss carry-forwards
is not probable. The tax losses amounted to
approximately HK$351,308,000 from Hong Kong
subsidiaries can be carried forward indefinitely
(2022: approximately HK$268,336,000 from
Hong Kong subsidiaries can be carried forward
indefinitely and approximately HK$19,195,000 from
PRC subsidiaries can be carried forward in coming
four years).

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liability of
HK$8,791,000 (2022: HK$7,090,000) has been
recognised in respect of the withholding tax
on the undistributed retained profits of a PRC
incorporated subsidiary and no deferred tax liability
recognised for the remaining undistributed retained
earnings of certain PRC incorporated subsidiaries
of approximately HK$1,271,825,000 (2022:
HK$1,206,211,000) in aggregate as the distribution
of the remaining undistributed retained earnings
is not probable. The applicable withholding tax
rate on dividend distributed by PRC incorporated
subsidiaries is ranged from 5% to 10%.
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22 78 22 INVENTORIES
—E-=F —=E-=
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 192,552 345,534
£ & Work in progress 29,212 60,345
2R Finished goods 150,532 81,310
372,296 487,189
@Q:E:E%ﬂ':ﬂ E""__E' I During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
R 7(?,5\}%5%1” Py %2,375,00_0% (=% provision for inventories of HK$2,375,000 (2022:
— =% :/8%14,836,0007T) £ B HK$14,836,000) was recognised in “raw materials
H&ZE%«%WE’\] [P A2 IR RO Feam | and consumables used” in the consolidated income
fERR o statement.
== e 4
23 EERYWERE 23 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
—_E-= =
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Rn—HA—H At 1 January 203,610 213,410
WRE SKYETEZBRE Provision for write-down of stock
of completed properties (2,208) (9,800)
®n+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 201,402 203,610
EXAMEFERRE: Stock of completed properties comprised:
—E_-= —=EF-
2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
[SES YNSRIV Commercial office units 181,300 183,260
EXiv] Car parking spaces 20,102 20,350
201,402 203,610
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23

24

EXRNERFE (&)

N-E-=F+-_A=+—H 2=
RYEGFEEHHAMNES Wik
B 15 5% (E 78 % 201,402,0007T (==
— — % :%%203,610,0007T) ¥ {& -
HaE#HEZE T _=F+-_A=+—H
IEFE 2 iR A Wik R R MOR &
B #2208,000 (Z 2 F : B
9,800,0007T) ° B SEAk M1 ¥ 7 B 2 K
EAAEBER 2 EBR (MFE30) o

23 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, stock of completed
properties are all located in Hong Kong and
carried at net realisable value amounted to
HK$201,402,000 (2022: HK$203,610,000) and
provision for write-down of HK$2,208,000 (2022:
HK$9,800,000) was recognised in the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31
December 2023. The stock of completed properties
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 30).

U E 5 R 24 TRADE RECEIVABLES
—EC-=HE g
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JE W E 5 AR R Trade receivables 810,914 1,074,905
R EWE SRR RERE Less: allowance for impairment
of trade receivables (2,325) (3,468)
808,589 1,071,437

AEERTESRFPZBREHREEN
F30H 212081 % - B W& W E (T
Al 7| & o

AEEZRBEREFERR - —REE
Hr—E2-lA -BUEFHEERR
EER ANEEREEFERBEHGE
WHER 2 FEU RS UREE E A -
AEBVERBKWE ZERERTR
TREMARARAEMEERTE
i e mAREIEA B MRt B R A R o
EWE SRR TG R

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
and no interest is charged.

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one
to three months. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
its credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Overdue balances are
regularly reviewed by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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24 ERESERR (&) 24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
AEBERRKEZEREFIZEZAHE Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by
BT : invoice date is as follows:

—_E_-= —_E -
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0x60H 0 - 60 days 531,396 657,007
61290H 61 — 90 days 154,137 204,214
HiBo0H Over 90 days 125,381 213,684
810,914 1,074,905
AEEEREEY B RS LR EH The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
AEEHEEEBBE BRI E B approach to measure expected credit losses which
BERWE ZRFERAFEEREERR uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
oM 3 A () (IR E B AT EZE trade receivables. Note 3.1(b)(ii) provides for details
G- about the calculation of the allowance.
JEWNE SRR BREER A EBEMES The carrying amount of trade receivables

approximate their fair values.

AEERKE ZEZTA T EETHE: The Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

—=E-= =
2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e United States dollar 317,743 608,466
AR Chinese renminbi 475,423 441,001
H Japanese yen 1,101 1,028
B Hong Kong dollar 16,647 24,410
810,914 1,074,905
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25 ERRE -FTERHEMEKERNR 25 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

240

RECEIVABLES
—E-=F —E=-=

2023 2022

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EEEZIE® Deposits for fixed assets 17,697 12,021

EfRFE Prepayments for inventories 20,948 12,273

JiE Wi 5B B Value added tax receivables 6,242 6,468

e EEBRAREERS Rental, management and utility deposits 6,881 6,782

FE SR 17 F B Uk A Bank interest income receivables 4,146 6,739

E b W BR X R TR SRR Other receivables and prepayments 63,277 64,729

119,191 109,012

B IEMEIE Less: non-current portion (24,578) (18,843)

mENE S Current portion 94,613 90,169
BRFRE T REMBWERIAT The prepayments, deposits and other receivables

5| & EHE - are denominated in the following currencies:
—E-=F —EF=-=

2023 2022

BEET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

AR Chinese renminbi 65,467 65,399

E7T United States dollar 12,346 2,150

ok Hong Kong dollar 38,089 36,940

H Japanese yen 425 1,314

MEE Vietnam dong 1,376 2,002

HAh Others 1,488 1,207

119,191 109,012

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

ERERZRFAS SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH
—_=E-= =
2023 2022
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEe Cash on hand 345 385
|ITF R Cash at bank 941,695 544,152
ReEKBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 942,040 544,537
REBARBB=-EAZ Short-term bank deposits with
RERITIE original maturity over three months 284,844 546,736
ZRERE Restricted cash 121,164 125,757
RekReZEEY- Cash and cash equivalents,
REHIRATIF K short-term bank deposits
&R #I3E 2 and restricted cash 1,348,048 1,217,030

BeMREFEY MR

XREBEESATINEEE:

TR K&

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank

deposits and restricted cash were denominated in

the following currencies:

—E-=F —_E-=
2023 2022
BT T S FIT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ke Hong Kong dollar 59,758 90,507
AR Chinese renminbi 722,844 802,840
ETT United States dollar 561,842 317,447
Hty Others 3,604 6,236
1,348,048 1,217,030
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26 RERBSEEY BHRT

FREZRHEE (&)

MHSRITHERZINEFHERER =X
B6.18% (ZZBE - —F :12.71%) o

BFREERNEGABTERAEY
FELIES S ST

RITER RHFRALZRGRS
89 201,444,000 (Z 2 ==

7 #1,096,670,0007T ) Jh A B K
MEE HAEBETEWINEEIZRTE-
ZEEMIINEETHRETHI B UK
XEAOESWRSG TEEEB/ K
I8 o

RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H %
R %138 & 8 #121,164,000T (= &
— 4 E¥125,757,0000T) £ E A
RIBITRHEBOZRE TR HP B
120,129,000 (ZE = F : B
121,609,00070) it —FHIHE AN B
NEERKRITREEER - X R
Rega T _WMF=-AE_F
THE+A(ZEZZF:ZF ==
FRAEZ-_NFMA)EH I
AAREE-

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

The weighted average effective interest rate on
short-term bank deposits was 6.18% (2022:
2.71%) per annum.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

Cash at bank, short-term deposits and
restricted cash of HK$1,201,444,000 (2022:
HK$1,096,670,000) are held in China and
Vietnam and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

As at 31 December 2023, restricted cash of
HK$121,164,000 (2022: HK$125,757,000) are
mainly restricted deposits held at bank, of which
HK$120,129,000 (2022: HK$121,609,000) were
secured for banking facility granted to a subsidiary
in Hong Kong. The restricted cash will mature from
March 2024 to October 2024 (2022: June 2023 to
April 2024), and are mainly denominated in Chinese
renminbi.
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fTEEmI A 27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—E-= —E-Z
2023 2022
BE =R BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BETT BE®Tr BT BT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
M Eis B — Interest rate swap —
& mE HH cash flow hedge
FERE Non-current 11,324 3,519 21,435 8,613

7 45 T A £ F3 5 45 7 1 % P9 32 T 3
Bt o

AEREBHANR -_E-=F
toAZtH-BrABESEABE
1,500,000,000c ( — = —F : B

1,500,000,0007T) °

RZEZ=FRk_FT__F+=H
=+—H FENXEHEH/FEEF
ZE - A R HE OTBHRREHR
BTr—BARNGEE BIe25RREHE
EXBE-AFERTHNXEHEE
TECRFET AT (ZEZ
F T RAFETLF)EIH-

AEEBEEBRAAESREEAHA 2K
REHNRMF228 - FHAEEITETA
AREBEEFAZFERBREZEZ2HE
|}ﬁ u_lI_S.S ©

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2023
was HK$1,500,000,000 (2022: HK$1,500,000,000).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all interest rate
swap contracts meet the hedging criteria. They are
presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period. The outstanding
interest rate swaps will mature from 2025 to 2027
(2022: 2025 to 2027).

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
hedges is set out in Note 2.2.8. For information
about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.
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28 ERESKRN 28 TRADE PAYABLES
AEEENESREFZEZAHE Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by
AT invoice date is as follows:

:'_;,EZE =

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0&60H 0 - 60 days 362,364 573,875
61290H 61 — 90 days 56,047 61,937
H#®0H Over 90 days 127,236 74,705
545,647 710,517

REEEMESETA T EEE: The Group’s trade payables are denominated in the

following currencies:
—E-=F —_EF_—

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong dollar 71,559 101,183
AR ¥ Chinese renminbi 141,456 125,865
E7T United States dollar 327,578 456,732
H Japanese yen 1,440 6,882
BT Euro 1,836 17,708
MEE Vietnam dong 1,778 2,147
545,647 710,517
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29 ESFEAREMENIRK

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-=F —E-—

2023 2022

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEET B B R FI R A Accrued employee benefit costs 107,423 102,885
H fth F& B IE Other tax payables 5,655 18,190
FEETAE - X4 R FEFEE R Accrued freight, delivery and storage charges 11,904 12,267
B AHEEER Accrued utilities charges 1,128 1,772
JEETET 2B Accrued construction payables 21,683 29,849
BT B M BBV IEE YR A Deferred income in relation to government grant = 5,294
(EX g Provision for reinstatement cost 6,153 -
Hh, Others 71,586 59,001
225,532 229,258

B IEMEIE Less: non-current portion (6,153) -
mENE S Current portion 219,379 229,258

AEBERFERNREMBENERZIAT

The Group’s accruals and other payables are

5| & EHE - denominated in the following currencies:
—E-= —F-=

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Chinese renminbi 83,134 82,110
ks Hong Kong dollar 106,240 105,248
ETT United States dollar 31,576 30,201
HE A Vietnam dong 3,993 11,358
H Japanese yen 93 73
Hith Others 496 268
225,532 229,258
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30 ERX 30 BORROWINGS
—EBCD=F —F-—
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREWIRIRTTE SR IR Trust receipt bank loans,
unsecured 338,790 443,564
WHRITE R EIL Short-term bank loans, unsecured 275,000 224,000
RERITER  BEE Short-term bank loans, secured 103,000 115,000
EERERKERERD Long-term bank loans which contains
RERITER BEMT a repayment on demand clause, secured 38,138 58,405
o REBITEN Portion of long-term bank loans due
R—FREE BEF for repayment within one year, secured 99,910 111,705
o REBITER Portion of long-term bank loans due
R—FEEE BEM for repayment after one year, secured 935,840 1,070,294
BER Total borrowings 1,790,678 2,022,968
ERE Non-current 935,840 1,070,294
Ui Current 854,838 952,674
BER Total borrowings 1,790,678 2,022,968
RZZEZ_=F+-_A=+T—HB FX& At 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings
EERZEEBRIOT were repayable as follows:
—E-= —_EF-_—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
1F A" Within 1 year 854,838 952,674
1524 Between 1 and 2 years 385,508 568,544
2FE5F Between 2 and 5 years 550,332 501,750
BE R Total borrowings 1,790,678 2,022,968
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30 EX (&)

R-EBE-_=F+_-_A=+—H #K
1,176,888,0007C (Z T = —F : B
1,355,404,0007T ) 2 & iR 1TTE R &
RHERITER U TS IERRE

e RZTE-_=%F+=ZA=+—8"
BREE 4 /B %19,145,0007T
(ZZF = =4 : #1#19,734,0007T )
ZME - BEERLZE EERELD
78 53,574,000 (Z T = — 4 :
7 55,222 00070 ) 2 # A iEE
Z= - BRE{E 4)75%1,915,000,0007T
— T = 4 8 ¥%1,927,000,000
TIZEEMEREREMELBE
201,402,000 (=& = — 4 :
7 #203,610,0007T ) Z 2 e X ¥
¥EFE MR

e ARA—ZXRHEEZEMWB QA
FT i 78 #120,129,0007C (=&
— T~ ##121,906,0007T ) 7 %
PR I35 &

o AKREBNAEE D ETalent Chain
Investments Limited 2z 25.7% ( =&
TTF25.7% )RR B HED ;
*

o ARRA—ZREEZEMBARFT
R IR &8 #760,000,0007T 2
EIR-

R-E-—_=F#+-_A=+—H &&
BlzEFRBARAIRE 2 CEERE
iR

30 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the short-term and long-
term bank loans of HK$1,176,888,000 (2022:
HK$1,355,404,000) were secured by the following:

e As at 31 December 2023, charges over
property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$19,145,000
(2022: HK$19,734,000), right-of-use assets
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$53,574,000 (2022: HK$55,222,000),
investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,915,000,000
(2022: HK$1,927,000,000) and stock of
completed properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$201,402,000 (2022:
HK$203,610,000);

° Restricted cash of HK$120,129,000 (2022:
HK$121,906,000) from an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company;

e A share charge over the Group’s 25.7% (2022:
25.7%) share of Talent Chain Investments
Limited, a joint venture of the Group; and

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings

were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given
by the Company.
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30 EX (&)

B bt R IRSN NEEC R E 8T R
RITHEIN 2B T RIS IR B 2247 -

A

ARsERZBHMAEE  HEEEE
B EERS-

ERBERCERERERAREEME
Ao AR BAETIRBIZEE KFI R
RBrREFE TBRAABEER
FoM -

REBERABEE.

ERRBERRERFRNERMT:

30 BORROWINGS (continued)

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
current borrowing rate and is within Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E-=fF —E-=

=

2023 2022

RESRITER Long-term bank loans
EREWIRIRTTE K Trust receipt bank loans
FEHIRITE R Short-term bank loans

6.15%-6.47%
5.97%-6.12%
6.27%-6.47%

4.53%-6.05%
3.71%-5.14%
5.40%-6.02%

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R
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B% A< 31 SHARE CAPITAL
1n e B H1E
Number of Nominal
shares value
BT T
HK$’ 000
FREEAEI0TT 2 EER Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
JETERRA Authorised:
R=-—EB-_—_%—-A—8" At 1 January 2022,
S+ =-HA=+—HR 31 December 2022 and
—E-=f+=ZHR=+—8 31 December 2023 700,000,000 70,000
EEITREERA: Issued and fully paid:
R-—E-_-—%—-H—8- At 1 January 2022,
—E__HF+ZA=t+—HK 31 December 2022 and
—E-_=%+=ZHA=+—8H 31 December 2023 478,483,794 47,848
FNARA S EEMAN B A EE Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
B -HEXBEARREMLEMES- purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year.
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32 f@#E (&)

fiata :

MisED -

AEBEZ BHRABEARER-NNTF
EERAPENB A RN < mEREAR
BRI I B TTAR ) Z EEME 2 25 -

¢Iwm%ﬁﬂ% AN B R B A A
ML zWBRBADE —#AMRB

1%Wﬂﬁ%ﬂ&¢ ERER)E—RE#

wREEBERES-

BMEED S RIEPBEEAG KA
HMeET TRHEREASEMATE10%
B EATE MG BEEEARRE
HREELRBEDRAIEREEZFHE B
ﬁﬁm%LU%E%Eﬁﬁ$ZW%ﬂU

BEEDTMNE - ZOR - —RHEHE
ﬁwﬁ% BEFEBESBNEITAR
R 15 o

HREEBRESME DEZBDLIH
EXEFET CEBRESTANER
REER-

HE_ZT-_=F+-_A=Z=+—HBL#HF
& 1,217,000 (Z B Z 26 B8
2,333,00070) EH L E —RE#EE R
&R o

32 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of
the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after — tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses) to
the general reserve and the enterprise expansion fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required to
transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
general reserve. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to equity owners. When the
balance of reserve reaches 50% of each entity’s registered
capital,
reserve can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be
utilised for the issuance of bonus shares.

any further appropriation is optional. The general

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the

development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, HK$1,217,000
(2022: HK$2,333,000) was appropriated to the general
reserve and the enterprise expansion
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33. REHE D z2E@MT A 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
AEEHEBEATERITA: The Group holds the following financial instruments:
—EC-=HF —E-—
2023 2022
BETT BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EWMEE Financial assets
DABESHR AT BR 2 © B B B Financial assets at amortised cost
e E F B 3K Trade receivables 808,589 1,071,437
51 K E b JE U BR 3K Deposits and other receivables 32,937 20,973
R HIEH Restricted cash 121,164 125,757
2 HIERITIE X Short-term bank deposits 284,844 546,736
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 942,040 544,537
RO BEFAEM Financial assets at fair value through
2HWANEREE other comprehensive income 100,138 158,616
PTHEEBmITA Derivative financial instruments 11,324 21,435
2,301,036 2,489,491
Ey=NE Financial liabilities
LABESER AR BR 2 B & Liabilities at amortised cost
ETE SRR Trade payables 545,647 710,517
FEET B A I H e T ER 3R Accruals and other payables 219,379 223,964
B Borrowings 1,790,678 2,022,968
HEBE Lease liabilities 16,168 38,333
THEecmIA Derivative financial instruments 3,519 8,613
2,575,391 3,004,395
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34 FMERERER

(@) FRAFGEHAMANBREEEELDN

34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income

ReFEZYHEROT: tax to net cash generated from
operations is as follows:
—E=-= —_F-_—
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEE Operating activities
R P 15 356 A A8 Profit before income tax 200,115 154,650
MTH BB Adjustments for:
BhE A —F 5 Finance costs — net 64,441 38,338
e E Share of (profits)/losses
(F8) &8 of joint ventures (49,462) 44,073
FEAR B 2 A R E 1B Share of loss of an associate - 4170
e Depreciation 65,558 71,931
HEME  BE L& HE Gains on disposals of property,
W plant and equipment (1,961) (804)
WIEHEH L AA 2z Gains on deemed disposal of
an associate - (117,064)
(#E),FHREKRE S (Reversal of)/provision for impairment
R 2B EEEREE losses on trade receivables (1,143) 368
GRS CRE &S Gains on lease modification (333) (832)
WS - BB k& Write-off of property, plant and
equipment 8,055 -
A FE A BR R B Write-back of other payables (5,930) (2,668)
RN Dividend income (1,827) -
REIDE/EXERE Y Provision for write down of stock
3 of completed properties 2,208 9,800
BEMEARBEE Change in fair value of
investment properties 12,062 80,148
EEBEESEHEZ Operating cash flows before
KEBRSME changes in working capital 291,783 282,110
FE Inventories 109,188 (135,043)
fE U E 5 BRI Trade receivables 254,710 (126,008)
FENFE FIE R Prepayments, deposits and
H b 1 U AR X other receivables (12,244) 11,889
e E 5 RK Trade payables (160,583) 80,605
EFFERAREMEMERFK  Accruals and other payables (2,565) 4,622
BHEE Contract liabilities 4,928 5,283
EEEENRE Cash generated from operations 485,217 123,458
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34 mMERERER (FE) 34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

b) EREREXRA HEWE (b)
BERREBHRERHEESE:

In the cash flow statement, proceeds
from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

—EC-=F —F--

2023 2022

BT T EEE T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BRmEFE Net book amount 4,363 80
LEWME - HEREE Gains on disposal of property,

2 Wz plant and equipment 1,961 804

LEWME - HEREE Proceeds from disposals of
Fr1S k18 property, plant and equipment 6,324 884

(c) ERFEHER

(c) Net debt reconciliation

REFHINE LI HEEHF

This section sets out an analysis of net debt

254

oMK ERFEZS- and the movements in net debt for each of the
period presented.
—E2-= —F-=

2023 2022
BET T ok i abie
HK$’000 HK$'000
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 942,040 544,537
EHEIRITER Short-term bank deposits 284,844 546,736
XBRHIBE S Restricted cash 121,164 125,757
HEBBE-RBIBH Lease liabilities — current portion (14,676) (18,914)
HEBBE-FREED Lease liabilities — non-current portion (1,492) (19,419)
BER—ER—FRERER Borrowings — repayable within one year (854,838) (952,674)
BR—ER—FEER Borrowings — repayable after one year (935,840) (1,070,294)
B FE Net debt (458,798) (844,271)
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34 ZEBHRERER (EFE 34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)
(c) BEXRFEEHIR (&) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
BEEHZERE
Liabilities from financing activities

BER bl i ER-% ER-%2
REEEY ROER ZRHRE HERE R-FAEE R-FHEE )

Cash Short- Borrowings - Borrowings -

and cash  term bank  Restricted Lease repayable repayable
equivalents deposits cash liabilities within one year after one year Total
B¥Tr BBt A%Tr  BBTR BETT BETT  BEBTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZZF-A-B2EHFE Netdebt as at 1 January 2022 400,818 877,757 136,320 (47,116) (774,164) (1,301,554)  (707,939)
Reng Cash flows 192,074 (284,707) 1,075 21,322 52,750 - (17,486)
SNERE Foreign exchange adjustments (48,355) (46,314) (11,638) 2,021 - - (104,286)
YERE Acquisition of leases - - - (31,926) - - (31,926)
BB % Other non-cash movements - - - 17,366 (231,260) 231,260 17,366

W=B-Zf+-A=1-H
ZEBRE Net debt as at 31 December 2022 544,537 546,736 125,757 (38,333) (952,674) (1,070,294)  (844,271)
Rene Cash flows 398,702 (256,218) (2,945) 16,136 232,290 - 387,965
SHNERE Foreign exchange adjustments (1,199) (5,674) (1,648) 214 - - (8,307)
E#ReEd Other non-cash movements - - - 5,815 (134,454) 134,454 5,815
R-g==Ft-f=1-7

ZEERE Net debt as at 31 December 2023 942,040 284,844 121,164 (16,168) (854,838) (935,840)  (458,798)
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35 NAEEzHKEMRKKFEE 35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

) POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
—E-= —F-=
2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current asset
WEBARMNEE Investments in subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
RBEE Current assets
BRRIE 52k Prepayments, deposits and
H i JE YR 3K other receivables 333 351
FEUB B A~ B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 548,774 498,774
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,575 1,726
... 550682 . 500,851
HEE Total assets 1,114,048 1,064,217
= EQUITY
FEBREAATEEA Equity attributable to owners
ZiER of the Company
f& 7 Share capital 47,848 47,848
HAib R Other reserves Bf 5 Note 675,934 675,934
IR &7 Retained earnings B 5ENote 88,347 76,710
HMRER Total equity 812,129 800,492
=i LIABILITIES
REAEE Current liabilities
FEEtBRA N EMERMEEF Accruals and other payables 3,155 2,962
XN NGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 298,764 260,763
wmesw Total liabilites 301919 263,725
HERREE Total equity and liabilities 1,114,048 1,064,217
REBEEFE Net current assets 248,763 237,126
MEERRBARS Total assets less current liabilities 812,129 800,492
BHHEREN T -_MWFE=A-+_H The financial statements were approved and
BEEgH EREETE  WH T authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
BEEREREF: 22 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:
T AFK TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FEFRITHAEE BF Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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AEHE2UBMRRRKFHE 35
28 (&)

5

GESESNGLT T T

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
(continued)

Note: Reserves movement of the Company

RHEE EBEXABRGERE BRBRH REEF B
Capital
Share redemption  Contributed Retained

premium reserve surplus earnings Total

BETT BT T BETT BETT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WR-ZE--%—-HF-H At 1 January 2022 153,025 345 522,564 75,207 751,141
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 23,036 23,036
R Dividends - - - (21,533) (21,533)
R-ZZB--F+=-A=+—H  At31December 2022 153,025 345 522,564 76,710 752,644
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 47,524 47,524
R & Dividends - - - (35,887) (35,887)
WR-ZB-=%+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2023 153,025 345 522,564 88,347 764,281

ARBZERBBEARER-NANETEF
EREBAARMBBHBRAREEAEF
EZHREESEAD B TR 2
MEMEZEZE - REABEARARFZ
RAMA ARFZEBBHBAHIIRT
BRI o

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the book values of the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in
1990. Under the Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the
Company, contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 257



e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 A&iE 36 COMMITMENTS
@ ME - BELRERHBZERNFE (a) Capital commitments in respect of property,
wm plant and equipment are as follows:
—E=-= —F--
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
SEEEE Contracted but not provided for 8,547 9,938
b) RZFEZ=F+=ZA=+—8" (b) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s future
AEBEREBEZOD AR HE M rental income receivables under various non-
ERFRKEHERKEKR ZHE cancellable operating leases in respect of
SWADITLT : rented premises are analysed as follows:
—E-= —_EF-—
2023 2022
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
—F R Within one year 27,980 49,792
F_EERF In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BRREERMF) 48,678 70,860
76,658 120,652
KEMBEWRFEASEREHEAEKRSE Operating lease receipts represent rentals
MERKHE HHOLHASERTHF receivable by the Group for leasing its investment
H3GFHEM REE (ZEZF:3F) properties. Leases and rentals are negotiated and

fixed for an average of 3 years (2022: 3 years).
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37 BEAEIXRS

RZBE-_=F+=-A=+—8 ARQF
ZEABRRAETBRKREE (FAARER
Salop Hong Kong Limited * H Ty @ ¥ 2
BHER REHZRF]) -

(a) EHBAE AL Z&8R

B & & ERIBHENEG S I
MRS © B BB IERE R MIEE18 -

(b) #ER

R—E-_=F+=-_RA=+—8"

RAABRENB AR BB
2,827,435,0000 (—Z & = —

7 #63,251,648,0007T ) 2 R 17 @b
B MIRITIRE D EER

RZE—_=F+=-_RA=+—8"
MEBARMBANRELNRBK
1,790,678,000C (—Z & = —

75 £2,022,968,0007T ) °

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Hong Kong Limited, a
company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a)

(b)

Balances with related parties

The amounts due from joint ventures are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The terms are set out in Note 18.

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2023, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities of
approximately HK$2,827,435,000 (2022:
HK$3,251,648,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$1,790,678,000 (2022:
HK$2,022,968,000).

(c) EEEE AERMN (c) Key management compensation
—_E_-= —=EF-=

2023 2022

BT T S F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 16,041 15,320

TE4T Bonus 7,011 3,059
IRRE B AN — A E 3G 8 Pension costs — defined

contribution schemes 62 72

23,114 18,451
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E=LY/E BIE

Schedule of Principal Properties

R=ZFZ=4F+=H=+—H Asat31 December 2023

BRAREER
NEABRAE k] (FHX) BRES R# HEAR THER  AREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry Completion Interest
NEEZRENE
Investment properties in Hong Kong
EBNEEETEHE181%0ne Harbour Square 9108+ HAE ERMEE1735 FRZE “EMtE B
1218151 161 - 178 - 188 - 191 ]R20%% ~AZtH
9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th, 19th and Office 12,089 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
20th floors, One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENETEEEEI8150ne Harbour Square 43EBERL  BEfL BEMBEITE e “INtE B3R
~AE=1A
43 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, Car parking spaces 538 Kwun Tong Infand Lot Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong No. 173
NEEZBRRNERE
Stock of completed properties in Hong Kong
FIENEEB5ZE18150ne Harbour Square 7 BAE BREAMRITIH BAZE “TNtE B,
~AZTA
Tth floors, One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Office 1,354 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong No. 173
BENEEEERE81%0ne Habour Square 14EBER  BEf BREABEITH e “EIMtE B
~E=1A
14 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, Car parking spaces 175 Kwun Tong Inland Lot Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%

181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

TREREBEERAT 2023 F3R

No. 173



WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
TREREEERA T

17/F, C-Bons International Center, No.108 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENEEREERTHI108FAEHRANE17E

www.wih.com.hk

4% This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper

%S rEmRARREDS



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Financial Highlights
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Directors’ Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Schedule of Principal Properties
	Back Cover



